Metro

Agenda 600 NE Grand Ave.

Portland, OR 97232-2736

Meeting: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC) Workshop
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023

Time: 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Place: Virtual meeting held via Zoom

video recordings are available online within a week of each TPAC meeting

Connect with Zoom
Passcode: 810060
Phone: 888-475-4499 (Toll Free)

9:00 am.  Call meeting to order and Introductions Chair Kloster
o Committee input on creating a Safe Space at TPAC

9:10 a.m. Comments from the Chair and Committee Members
e Updates from committee members around the Region (all)

Public communications on agenda items

9:15 a.m. Consideration of TPAC workshop summary, July 12, 2023 Chair Kloster
Edits/corrections sent to Marie Miller

9:20 a.m. Statewide Carbon Reduction Program funding allocation: Chris Ford, ODOT
Update and Final project list
Purpose: Share final funding allocations.

9:35 a.m. 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP): Draft Public Comment Kim Ellis, Metro
Report and Recommended Actions in Response to Public Comment
Purpose: Present an overview of public comments received and key concerns
identified by Metro staff for more in-depth policy discussion. A supplemental
mailing of draft Metro staff recommendations that respond to public comments
received and do not warrant in-depth discussion will be sent on Tuesday, Sept. 12.
Initial TPAC feedback on these draft Metro staff recommendations as well as
key concerns to raise for JPACT discussion is requested.

A meeting break will be provided during this agenda item
11:10 a.m. Committee comments on creating a safe space at TPAC Chair Kloster

11:15 a.m. Adjournment Chair Kloster


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86807582538?pwd=R2RHVnB5eEEyMEJSOW1xNTI0aVVXUT09

Metro respects civil rights

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and other
statutes that ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color,
national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination
complaint form, visit oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1890. Metro provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and
people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY
503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair accessible. Individuals with service animals are
welcome at Metro facilities, even where pets are generally prohibited. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet's website at trimet.org

Théng bdo vé sy Metro khdng ky thi cua

Metro tén trong din quy&n. Muén biét thém théng tin vé chuang trinh din guyén
clia Metro, ho3c mudn I&y don khigu nai v sir ky thi, xin xem trong
www.oregonmetro.govj/civilrights. Néu quy vi can théng dich vién ra ddu bang tay,
trg gitp vé tiép xtc hay ngén ngif, xin goi s6 503-797-1700 (tir & gity sdng dén S gier
chigu vao nhitng ngay thudng) trude budi hop 5 ngay 1am viéc.

MNoeigomneHHs Metro npo 3a60poHy gUCKPUMIHaLT

Metro 3 noBaroto CTaBMTLCA A0 TPOMAAAHCEKKX NPaB. 1A oTpUMaHHA iHGopmMaLi
npo nporpamy Metro i3 3axucTy rpoMaaaHCbKUX Npas abo Gopmu ckapru npo
AWCKPUMIHALO BigBifaiTe cailT www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. abo flkwo sam
notpibeH nepeknagay Ha 36opax, ANA 3340BONEHHA BALWOTo 3anuTy 3atenedoHyite
32 Homepom 503-797-1700 3 8.00 go 17.00 y poboui gHi 3a n'aATe pob6o4ux aHiB A0
36opie.

Metro FR ISR A5

CHERAE - AR Metro R HESTHRATRENY BRI R - SYRITEAE S
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights » #1 S TR 155 s el » S5r @
HEE BHATS{EE 5 0 #47503-797-

1700 ( TfFH EF8EEET58E) » DUERITHZ a2k -

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro

Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquugda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku
saabsan barnaamijka xuquugda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid wargadda ka
cabashada takoorista, boogo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan
tahay turjubaan si aad uga gaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1700 (8
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shagada) shan maalmo shago ka hor
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada.

Metrod] 718 FA] B#d A4

Metro2] A 713 Z &3] )3 AR == 2PE gho) M Al S Yo, i
o] o) gk 272 4151 3 SFwww.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 41 2] ¢1o

2 gle] B a7, 8l oo ek 5P (.F 54 FF ol 2.7 84])503-797-
17008 &3

Metro®D ZERIIZE - HE40

Metro T XA RIEAMEL TV 2T « MetroDARIEZ O 7 5 AL T DA
(ZD0T ~ EEEREH 7 4 — A8 AT T 5120 - www.oregonmetro.gov/
civilrights » ¥ THEIE ZaWARSHETEEMRELZE L SR 5L -
Metro TEFHICHHILT &5 L 5 - APISOSE R AT £ TI2503-797-

1700 CEAFHisH~F185HF) F THEE 231y -

ieAESSANAA RIS SITaENIUR Metro

FIEINGE NUIRIUN 1 INUFASESHARETSHENUIRIUN Metro
s gumAui s RyuG s gsSIEN Sl
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
idhnnsgmEirEausiummsSiinuHg

[USNSIAN: YU SIS NUMIUE 503-797-1700 (ENH 8 [FREM0ENE 5 0N
igiSenn) ooy

igiSen gsigudiSgogisugusuaiafiuainnsgs 4

Metro (e il asny jadl

S p Iy Asad) G sl Metro meli s Jss e ghall (o 1 3all Asiadl G sisll Metro p_sas
dalay =€ o) www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights 5 ASIY! a8 sall 355 (o2 5 « uall 2
i Lalia 8 ALl o) 503-797-1700 <ilgll ad p Lo Jai¥) dlide Cany 3l i B2elis )
B e 50 0 Jae ol (5) fsads 08 (a1 o4 clelins 5 L)

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon

Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Kung
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa
503-797-1700 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.

Notificacién de no discriminacion de Metro

Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener informacién sobre el programa de
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por
discriminacion, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1700 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los dias de semana)
5 dias laborales antes de la asamblea.

YBeAoMAeHWe 0 HeAONYLWEeHUH AUCKPMMWHALMK OT Metro

Metro yBaaeT rpaxaaHckue npaga. ¥YaHate o nporpamme Metro no cobaiogeHuio
rPaXAAHCKMX NPaB 1 NONYYMTE GOpMY Kanobbl 0 AUCKPUMHMHALUKMIK MOMKHO Ha Beb-
caiite www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Ecnv Bam HymeH nepeBoa4mK Ha
obwecrseHHOM cobpaHuK, OcTasbTe CBOM 3anpoc, NO3BOHKUE No Homepy 503-797-
1700 e pabouure aHu ¢ 8:00 go 17:00 1 3a nATb paboumnx gHel Ao AaTel cOBPaHMA.

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea

Metro respecta drepturile civile. Pentru informatii cu privire la programul Metro
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obtine un formular de reclamatie impotriva
discrimindrii, vizitati www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dac3 aveti nevoie de un
interpret de limba la o sedintd publicd, sunati la 503-797-1700 (intre orele 8 5i 5, In
timpul zilelor lucrdtoare) cu cinci zile lucrdtoare inainte de sedint3, pentru a putea sa
va raspunde Tn mod favorabil la cerere.

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom

Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus ghia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Yog hais tias
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1700 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.

January 2021



2023 TPAC Work Program
Asof9/7/2023
NOTE: Items in italics are tentative; bold denotes required items
All meetings are scheduled from 9am - noon

TPAC workshop, September 13, 2023

Agenda Items:
e Statewide Carbon Reduction Program funding
allocation: update and final project list (Chris
Ford, ODOT; 15 min)
e 2023 RTP: Draft Public Comment Report and
Recommended Actions in Response to Public
Comment (Kim Ellis, 90 min)

TPAC meeting, October 6, 2023
Comments from the Chair:

e Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)

e Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)

e Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)
Reminder of upcoming FY 2024-25 UPWP kickoff
and request to share new projects (John Mermin)

Agenda Items:

e MTIP Formal Amendment 23-XXXX
Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 10 min)

e Distribution of revenues to 2027-20 ODOT funding|
programs (ODOT staff TBD, Ted Leybold, Metro;
30 min) possible action item

e Ordinance 23-1496 2023 RTP: Draft Public
Comment Report and Recommended Actions in
Response to Public Comment (Kim Ellis, Metro, 90
min)

e 2023 High Capacity Transit Strategy (Resolution
No. 23-5348) Discussion (Ally Holmqvist, Metro;
45 min)

e 82nd Avenue Transit Project Update (Elizabeth
Mros-O’Hara/ TriMet TBD; 25 min)

e Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)




TPAC meeting, November 3, 2023
Comments from the Chair:

Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)

Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)

Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:

MTIP Formal Amendment 23-XXXX

Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 10 min)
Ordinance 23-1496 on 2023 RTP, Projects and

Appendices Recommendation to JPACT (Kim Ellis,
Metro, 90 min)

2023 High Capacity Transit Strategy
(Resolution No. 23-5348) Recommendation to
[PACT (Ally Holmgvist, Metro; 45 min)

Great Streets Program updates: Final project list
(Chris Ford, ODOT; 30 min)

Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe
Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

TPAC workshop, November 8, 2023

Agenda Items:
e Regional Transportation Safety Performance
Report (Lake McTighe, 60 min)
e 2027-30 STIP - options being discussed at OTC
(Chris Ford, ODOT; 30 min)
e Freight Delay Study Report Update (Tim
Collins; 45 min)

TPAC meeting, December 1, 2023
Comments from the Chair:

Committee member updates around the Region
(Chair Kloster & all)

Monthly MTIP Amendments Update (Ken
Lobeck)

Fatal crashes update (Lake McTighe)

Agenda Items:

MTIP Formal Amendment 23-XXXX

Recommendation to JPACT (Lobeck, 10 min)
Westside Multimodal Improvements Study (Kate

Hawkins, Metro/ Stephanie Millar, ODOT; 45 min)
Committee Wufoo reports on Creating a Safe

Space at TPAC (Chair Kloster; 5 min)

Parking Lot: Future Topics/Periodic Updates

Columbia Connects Project

Best Practices and Data to Support
Natural Resources Protection

TV Highway Corridor plan updates

High Speed Rails updates (Ally Holmqgvist)

e MTIP Formal Amendment I-5 Rose Quarter
discussion (Ken Lobeck)

¢ I-5 Rose Quarter Project Briefing (Megan
Channell, ODOT)

e [-5 Interstate Bridge Replacement program
update

Agenda and schedule information E-mail: marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov or call 503-797-1766.
To check on closure or cancellations during inclement weather please call 503-797-1700.



mailto:marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov

Meeting minutes

@ Metro

600 NE Grand Ave.

Portland, OR 97232-2736

Meeting: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC) Workshop
Date/time: Wednesday July 12, 2023 | 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Place: Virtual online meeting via Web/Conference call (Zoom)

Members Attending
Tom Kloster Chair
Karen Buehrig
Allison Boyd
Dyami Valentine
Eric Hesse

Jaimie Lorenzini
Jay Higgins

Mike McCarthy
Tara O’Brien
Chris Ford

Bill Beamer

Sarah lannarone
Indi Namkoong
Katherine Kelly

Alternates Attending
Steve Williams

Adam Fiss

Will Farley

Gregg Snyder
Neelam Dorman

Members Excused
Judith Perez

Gerik Kransky
Laurie Lebowsky-Young
Lewis Lem

Ellie Gluhosky
Danielle Maillard
Jasia Mosley
Jasmine Harris
Steve Gallup
Shawn M. Donaghy
Ned Conroy

Rian Sallee

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023

Affiliate

Metro

Clackamas County

Multnomah County

Washington County

City of Portland

City of Happy Valley and Cities of Clackamas County
City of Gresham and Cities of Multnomah County
City of Tualatin and Cities of Washington County
TriMet

Oregon Department of Transportation
Community Representative at Large

Community Representative, The Street Trust
Community Representative, Verde

City of Vancouver

Affiliate

Clackamas County

SW Washington Regional Transportation Council
City of Lake Oswego and Cities of Clackamas County
City of Hillsboro and Cities of Washington County
Oregon Department of Transportation

Affiliate

SW Washington Regional Transportation Council
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
Washington State Department of Transportation
Port of Portland

Community Representative, OPAL

Community Representative, Oregon Walks
Community Representative at Large

Federal Highway Administration

Clark County

C-Tran System

Federal Transit Administration

Washington Department of Ecology

Page 1



Guests Attending
Bruce Moody
Bryan Graveline
Chris Smith

Cody Field

Dave Roth

Jacqui Treiger
Jessica Engelmann
John Charles
Julia Wean

Kate Bridges
Kirsten Beale
Lucia Ramirez
Matt Berkow
Micah DeSilva
Nick Fortey
Trevor Mace
Vanessa Vissar

Metro Staff Attending

Affiliate
FHWA
Portland Bureau of Transportation

City of Tualatin

City of Tigard

Oregon Environmental Council

City of Beaverton

Cascade Policy Institute

Steer

Steer

WSP

Oregon Department of Transportation
Portland Bureau of Transportation

FHWA
Clark County
Oregon Department of Transportation

Ally Holmgvist, Caleb Winter, Daniel Audelo, Eliot Rose, Grace Cho, Grace Stainback, John Mermin, Kim
Ellis, Marie Miller, Marne Duke, Michaela Barton, Noel Mickelberry, Ted Leybold, Thaya Patton, Tom

Kloster

Call to Order and Introductions

Chair Kloster called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Introductions were made. Reminders where
Zoom features were found online was reviewed. The link for providing ‘safe space’ at the meeting was

shared in the chat area.

Comments from the Chair and Committee Members

Updates on various Oregon Department of Transportation funding programs (Chris Ford, ODOT) An

informational forum meeting hosted by ODOT Region 1 was announced regarding an overview of the
auxiliary lanes planning. This meeting was later cancelled.

ODOT and Metro staff have been having a series of discussions around the Motor Vehicle Policies. This
is in coordination with other policy planning and will be presented soon.

ODOT funding programs were reported on. The Innovative Mobility Program (IMP) is a new initiative
from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) that aims to improve access to public
transportation, reduce the number of trips Oregonians make by car, and reduce greenhouse gas
emissions. The IMP has a special focus on equity and helping historically excluded groups to get to
where they need to go more quickly, cheaply and safely. The IMP is funded by Infrastructure,
Investment and Jobs Act, passed by Congress in November 2021, as well as state of Oregon dollars. The
program has a total of $20 million for grants and contracts from 2022-25.

The Carbon Reduction Program is a new federal program created by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law
that will provide Oregon $82 million over five years to fund projects that reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from transportation. The program provides funding for three types of areas: Transportation
Management Areas, ODOT statewide projects, and Small Urban and Rural areas.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 2



e Transportation management areas are the urbanized areas of Portland, Eugene and Salem. The
regional agencies for these areas will decide which projects get funded in their jurisdictions.

e ODOT statewide projects are projects overseen by ODOT. The agency will decide which projects
to fund using federal and state criteria.

e Small urban and rural areas include counties, cities, rural areas, and tribal governments with
populations less than 200,000. ODOT will coordinate a grant program to distribute the federal
funding for eligible projects in these areas.

The National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) Formula Program will provide funding to states to
strategically deploy electric vehicle (EV) charging stations and to establish an interconnected network
to facilitate data collection, access, and reliability. Funding is available for up to 80% of eligible project
costs. The $100 million funding for EV charging committed by ODOT will be spend over the next 5
years. About two-thirds of the funding — $52 million from the 2021 federal infrastructure bill plus a
required 20% match — must be spent on EV charging infrastructure along designated Alternative Fuel
Corridors, as per guidance from the Federal Highway Administration. Oregon has 11 roads designated
as "electric corridors" under the NEVI program: Interstates 5, 82, 84, 205 and 405; US Highways 20, 26,
95, 97 and 101; and OR Highway 42. ODOT may propose additional roads for designation over the next
five years. The remaining third of the money — $36 million — will be used to close EV infrastructure
gaps beyond those 11 roads.

Great Streets Program is a funding program that address safety improvements and increases access to
walking, biking, and transit. It focuses on “main streets" in communities around the state. ODOT is
launching this program with $50 million of flexible federal transportation funds from the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act. Initial investments will be limited to highway corridors that the state owns
and manages. This first round of funding will serve as a proof-of-concept so we can learn more in
developing future versions of the program.

Ted Leybold asked what opportunities were available to provide input on these decisions before
project selections are made. Mr. Ford noted materials from the OTC would give further information
with public and agency input welcome in the process. Sarah lannarone asked what the revenue source
for the 20% local match on NEVI program would be. Mr. Ford noted the 20% match will come from the
private sector partner that we select through the competitive RFP.

Updates on Regional Mobility Policy Draft Throughway Travel Speed Analysis (Kim Ellis, Metro) The
committee was reminded of the public comment period on draft 2023 RTP, with a link in chat shared
for all document links. https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-
plan/public-comment The memo in the packet (pg. 6) provides an update on additional work
completed and underway to inform finalizing the draft policy, measures and targets/thresholds for the
2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). A second memo (pg. 8) summarizes work to develop a
methodology and to calculate initial observed and modeled travel speed metrics for throughways
designated in the RTP for the region. This work supports further testing and refinement of

the draft Regional Mobility Policy (RMP). Karen Buehrig suggested small group sessions on the
measures that would be helpful on educating the local practitioners about these issues to better
address comments on the RTP.

Public Communications on Agenda Items — none received

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 3


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Pages/IIJA.aspx
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/public-comment
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/public-comment

Consideration of TPAC workshop summary, May 10, 2023 (Chair Kloster) Edits or corrections were
asked to be sent to Marie Miller. No edits/corrections were received. Meeting summary approved.

2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP): Regional Mobility Policy TDM/TSMO System Completeness
Measures and Implementation (Kim Ellis and Grace Stainback, Metro/ Kate Bridges, Steer) Kate Bridges
began the presentation with a reminder of the purpose of the Regional Mobility Policy Update, to
update the mobility policy and how we define and measure mobility for the Portland area
transportation system, and recommend amendments to the Regional Transportation Plan and

Oregon Highway Plan Policy 1F for the Portland area. Three measures are included in the draft RMP
(VMT/Capita, System Completeness, and Reliability of Throughways. This presentation focused on
System Completeness.

Defining System Completeness was noted for the definition: What makes a complete (Transportation
Demand Management) TDM/(Transportation System Management & Operations) TSMO system?
What should be considered baseline, defined and optimized?

Roles and responsibilities: What are Metro’s role and responsibilities? What roadblocks might be
encountered by jurisdictions, mobility operators, and agencies?

Updated Regional Mobility Policy: How will this be implemented within the context of the Mobility
Policy Update? Transportation and Comprehensive Plan Amendments.

Various overviews were shown of system completeness from baseline to optimized.
Comments from the committee:

e Chris Ford asked Steer staff if there was an order to this in terms of land use, regulations and
transportation from your planning experience. It was noted the baseline made sense, but not
sure each jurisdiction is up to date on land use plans that incorporate affordable housing and
housing development. Did you have a recommendation to get this started? Ms. Bridges noted it
was likely they would work in tandem with the land use component more incorporated in
comprehensive plan amendments. That may trigger how it affects projects under the baseline.

Ted Leybold noted this is something we need to look at in more detail. Ms. Ellis added work on
the 2040 Growth Concept and Urban Growth Management Plan and Functional Plan have
identified issues that set our foundation in the region for locally adopted plans. We can
leverage and build on these with the required CFEC land use regulations.

e Karen Buehrig noted the baseline column on slide 13 may need to be in our TDM plan or both
TDM and TSMO plan. Under Design where is says “incorporate into gap analysis, demonstrate
alignment with 2040 Growth Concept, RTP policies, and TPR/CFEC”. It was asked what that
means and what kind of action would that be for a local jurisdiction. Ms. Bridges noted we are
hoping this baseline is considering all these elements and will be documented in the TSP. And if
the TSP makes reference to an external TDM or TSMO plan that’s acceptable. But it needs to
include language that highlights these considerations and needs to be included in that external
plan, such as demonstrating compilation with the 2040 Growth Concept with bullets showing
how this has happened to suffice.

Discussion was held on plans interacting with the RTP, including functional plans, CFEC
requirements, TDM and TSPs. Functional plans were noted for providing direction on what
needs to be included in the inventory of the TDM. Parking, wayfinding, pricing and design
elements would need to be documented in the TSP. The TSP can point to a TDM strategy.

e Dyami Valentine noted that Washington County has done a fair amount of work identifying
baseline priority elements. But there is a need for concurrence and agreement so if we’ve done

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 4



a baseline analysis and determined the context is going to be important at a County level we
have determined some of this is not feasible at certain levels. That establishes the next level
between County/City with limited capabilities and set of opportunities to implement some of
these programs. But the concurrence is important, and we look at Metro to respond to what
that might look like.

e Eric Hesse noted the gap analysis in the baseline elements which can help bring all the pieces
together. With the CFEC required elements in the design of the TDM is will be important to
sync into what ODOT and DLCD are doing. Ms. Ellis noted discussions with plans are being
coordinated with agencies and more work is yet to be done. They are working together to
provide guidance at the statewide level on CFEC implementation. There is overlap and we are
sharing information to members of the project management team with work on the Mobility
Policy statewide work as well.

e Bill Beamer noted the whole perspective and approach with transportation planning is not
inclusive, and not considering opportunities to address equity at mid-level and upstream levels.
This impacts communities of color regarding transportation in ways with pedestrian and
transit. There are many more priority opportunities to address transportation. The current
definition of plans does not allow further opportunities to take advantage of these things.

In some TDM organizations and planning groups the perspective is not coming from those
impacted communities and what’s really important to them. To define things to this very small
downstream level you are not taking into account the impact of your transportation plans.
Transportation plans from past decades where investments and time planning were thought to
be solutions, but the problems continue to increase. There is a real gap between plans that are
not including perspectives of communities.

Ms. Bridges began the next section of the presentation on transportation system plans. A graphic
showing RTP updates every 5 years with TSP updates and amendments noted. It was noted the
Functional Plan Update 2024-2025 will define how local governments implement the new mobility

policy.

Sarah lannarone suggested thought be given to refining equity measures in the next RTP with how they
are contributing to instability and lack of opportunity. Refinements to equity measures and evaluation
as they relate to disparities in geographics, economic impacts and infrastructure investments can
provide a fast track for better progress. Indi Namkoong strongly agreed these would be really useful.
Ms. Ellis noted this can be an activity called out in Chapter 8.

A case study of Clackamas County was reviewed. Karen Buehrig noted this is helpful to see how the
elements are applied and see the variety of places to consider for the TSP to be in compliance. Steve
Williams noted it may be challenging to incorporate all the elements into the TSP given the County is
currently under an update now. Ms. Bridges asked for confirmation that the next TSP update would
ideally be before 2028. Ms. Ellis noted the Functional Plan update in 2024-25 can give direction on TSP
planned updates.

A case study of the City of Beaverton was reviewed. Jessica Engelmann noted we are pretty good at
checking the boxes in terms of actually operation and achieving outcomes. The process laid out is
appreciated. But its on the cities and counties to figure out details. TDM is an umbrella in terms of
everything coming together, where you can enhance things and pair with policy. It was suggested to do
more behavior planning to show impacts and direct better investments in the future.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 5



Gregg Snyder noted a lot of money was spent over 18 months planning the City of Hillsboro TSP
completed in 2021. It was expected to have a shelf life of 6-8 years. It was asked if an updated was
needed between 2025-28 or is this a voluntary requirement. Ms. Ellis noted it's not mandatory. Part of
the conversation we’ll have with the Functional Plan update is with coordination with local
governments. Mr. Snyder suggested that when talking about TSP updates note they are not mandatory
but a voluntary process. Interest with discussion on planned amendments next was expressed given
new growth in the area.

A graphic was presented on how Plan Amendments interact with TSP/System Completeness. The
requirements for plan amendments were reviewed for TDM and TSMO. Options for recommendations
for plan amendments was given. Two case studies were reviewed: one for Colwood Industrial District
and the other for the City of Hillsboro Community Development Plan. Chris Ford noted there can be
challenges with possible mitigations that happen between jurisdictions. ODOT works with cities and
counties looking to find multi-jurisdictional solutions.

Support from Metro is planned with Regional Collaboration, Tools and Resources, Funding and
Investments, and Direct Services. Presenters from Steer were thanked for their great information.

There was a 10-minute break in the meeting.

Draft Transportation System Management & Operation (TSMO) System Completeness and Mobility
Corridors (Caleb Winter, Metro) A summary of TSMO stakeholder workshops was provided. It was
noted mobility-focus means actively managing facilities for their primary function and managing
demand away from trips outside mobility corridors. Mobility corridors have capacity for multimodal
trips. The TSMO gap analysis was described. Elements of this include:

¢ Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture and Interoperability

¢ ODOT Procedures manual

® 2023 RTP System Management: actively managing throughways and arterials

¢ TSMO Stakeholder input that supports TSMO in RTP Mobility Corridors

Comments from the committee:

e Karen Buehrig asked if the suggested changes collected from the workshops is going to be
submitted by Metro as changes to the RTP draft or agencies asked to submit them as part of
the public comment period. Mr. Winter noted the information from the workshops were
gathered from agencies around the region. Having it reflected in the RTP and included in the
management system helps bring forward improvements with TSMO projects. It was noted that
changes on the 2023 RTP System Management Map (Figure 3-38 in Chapter 3 of the public
review draft 2023 RTP) can be given in public comment and through the TransPort committee
for consideration. https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-tsmo-
strategy/meetings

e Eric Hesse asked if suggestions from workshops were already reflected in the map. Mr. Winter
noted they were but welcomed further comments and input. It was asked what the timeline
was for getting the Regional ITS Architecture & Operational Plan updated. Mr. Winter noted
time was needed to develop this and would not be expected as a full update for another 2
years from now. It was asked is the Mobility Corridors presented more in the context of RTP
updates or TSMO corridors. Mr. Winter noted TSMO in RTP Mobility Corridors that supports
mobility in both directions across one or more jurisdictional boundaries, making a connection
between one RTP urban growth land use and another, going forward for cities and counties to
help update their TSPs.

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 6


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-tsmo-strategy/meetings
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-tsmo-strategy/meetings

e Tara O’Brien asked for clarification where pieces on feedback is needed. Mr. Winter confirmed
the comments from the map and transit services named by Ms. O’Brien would be discussed at
Transport before coming back to TPAC with a recommendation.

The presentation concluded with information on defining TSMO System Completeness. Workshop
notes were shared. Draft definition given:
The TSMO system is complete when:
e Operators automate or change field device settings via high-speed data connections, sharing
permissions with other operators and sharing data with travelers.
¢ Local systems are interoperable with regional and state systems so that travelers and freight
carriers can:

e opt-in to receive customized traveler information by time of day, location and duration of
travel from origin to destination (inside and outside of region).

e participate in, or encounter demand management capable of a 4% reduction in demand
lasting 2 hours from when it is first needed.
¢ Incident responders are trained in incident management
¢ End-of-life assets are replaced in advance of breaking, degraded performance or system
incompatibility (calling attention to digital infrastructure equipment that is often underground).
¢ The benefits of a managed transportation system are shared equitably.

Committee comments on creating a safe space at TPAC — none received

Adjournment

There being no further business, workshop meeting was adjourned by Chair Kloster at 12:01 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Marie Miller, TPAC Recorder

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023 Page 7



Attachments to the Public Record, TPAC workshop meeting, July 12, 2023

ftem DOCUMENT TYPE DOCUMENT
DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION DocuMENT No.
1 Agenda 7/12/2023 7/12/2023 TPAC Workshop Agenda 071223T-01
2 2023 TPACWork | 0 /55 2023 TPAC Work Program as of 7/5/2023 0712237-02
Program
TO: TPAC and interested parties
From: Kim Ellis, AICP, RTP Project Manager
3 Memo 7/5/2023 RE: 2023 Regional Transportation Plan: Regional Mobility 0712231-03
Policy Next Steps
TO: Kim Ellis, RTP Project Manager
From: Joe Broach, Senior Researcher and Modeler
4 Memo 7/5/2023 Peter Bosa, Principal Researcher and Modeler 071223T-04
RE: Draft Throughways Travel Speed Analysis for the 2023
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
5 Minutes May 10, 2023 | Draft minutes from May 10, 2023 TPAC workshop meeting | 071223T-05
6 Presentation 7/12/2023 TDM /TSMO System Completeness 071223T-06
7 Presentation 7/12/2023 Draft Transportation System Ma?r)ageme.nt & Operations 071223T-07
System Completeness and Mobility Corridors
UPDATED Draft T tation Syst M t&
8 Presentation 7/12/2023 = Uralt Transportation system Vianagement 071223T-08
Operations, System Completeness and Mobility Corridors
9 Presentation 7/12/2023 UPDATED TDM / TSMO System Completeness 071223T-09

Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee Workshop, Meeting Minutes from July 12, 2023

Page 8




600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

@ Metro
Memo

Date: September 7, 2023
To: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC) and interested parties
From: Kim Ellis, AICP, RTP Project Manager

Subject: 2023 Regional Transportation Plan: Draft Public Comment Report and Overview of Key
Concerns Raised for Further Policy Discussion

PURPOSE

This memo provides a draft public comment report (and appendices), a summary of key concerns
identified for more in-depth policy discussion, and the schedule for finalizing the 2023 Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP) and 2023 High Capacity Transit (HCT) Strategy for consideration by the
Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council in November. A
supplemental memo of draft Metro staff recommendations that respond to public comments
received and do not warrant in-depth discussion will be sent on Tuesday, September 12.

ACTION REQUESTED

The September 13 workshop provides an opportunity for TPAC members to begin discussion of draft
Metro staff recommended actions to respond to public comments on the RTP and HCT Strategy. Initial
TPAC feedback on the draft Metro staff recommendations as well as the key concerns identified for
JPACT discussion is requested.

BACKGROUND

The greater Portland region’s economic prosperity and quality of life depend on a transportation
system that provides every person and business in the region with equitable access to safe, reliable,
climate-friendly and affordable travel options. Since Fall 2021, the Metro Council and staff have
extensively engaged with policymakers, jurisdictional staff, federally recognized tribes, transportation
agencies, community-based organizations and business groups, businesses, and members of the public
to update the region’s vision, goals and policies for the transportation system and understand the
region’s transportation trends, needs and priorities for investment.

Shown in Figure 1, the region is in the final adoption phase for the 2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy.

Figure 1. Timeline

SCOPING PLAN UPDATE PLAN ADOPTION

Approved Initiate Release public Consider
work plan and Call for review draft adoption of
Projects plan and 2023 RTP and 5

H appendices appendices

engagement plan

PHASE | PHASE PHASE

3

Sept. to
Dec. 2022

Oct. 2021 to January to

June 2023

ENGAGEMENT

=
-]
-
m
=
m
3
5
(=]
=
]
=
(=]
Z
=
(=]
=
=
(3]

Understand Trends Refine Vision, Update System Build RTP Public Review of
and Challenges Goals, Objectives, Needs and Revenue  Investment Strategy Draft Plan

Targets and Policies Forecast Create Draft Plan Plan Adoption

Develop Work Plan
and Engagement Plan

o Key Milestone * Metro Council decision on JPACT action and MPAC recommendation



2023 RTP: DRAFT PUBLIC COMMENT REPORT AND OVERVIEW OF 9/7/23
KEY CONCERNS RAISED FOR FURTHER POLICY DISCUSSION

A schedule of remaining discussions and actions is provided in Attachment 1.
OVERVIEW OF FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

A final 45-day public comment period was held from Monday, July 10 to Friday, August 25, 2023. The
public comment period built on the significant engagement and feedback received throughout the
update to the RTP.! Engagement activities conducted during the comment period included:

o Notifications and notices - Public notices of the comment period were provided to local
neighborhood involvement and community outreach offices and community planning
organizations in Washington County. Notices were published in Portland Tribune, Clackamas
Review, Hillsboro News Times, Forest Grove News Times, Valley Times News, Beaverton Valley
Times, El Latino de Hoy, The Asian Reporter and on the Metro website. Notifications were sent to
the RTP interested persons list (nearly 2,772 people) in addition to Metro’s four regional advisory
committees and their respective interested parties. Partner agencies and community and business
organizations engaged throughout the RTP update posted notifications of the comment period
through E-newsletters, social media and other methods to inform their members and interested
parties of the comment opportunity.

¢ On-line survey and on-line comment form - An on-line survey, an interactive map and
interactive project list, and public review drafts of the 2023 RTP, project lists, appendices and High
Capacity Transit Strategy were posted on the 2023 RTP web page at www.oregonmetro.gov/rtp.
Members of the public, regional advisory committees, partner agencies and other interested
parties were invited to comment on the draft materials. More than 660 people responded to the
on-line survey and more than 250 people and agencies submitted more than 300 comments
through an online comment forum. The survey results and comments submitted through the on-
line comment form are included in the draft public comment report.

e Letters and emails - The public was invited to submit letters and emails. Metro received more
than 50 emails and 40 letters from community members, community-based organizations,
advocacy groups, business associations, public agencies and elected officials. The emails and letters
are included in the draft public comment report.

e Public hearing - The Metro Council held a public hearing on July 27, 2023. Thirteen community
members testified at the hearing. The closed caption transcript of hearing testimony is included in
the draft public comment report.

o Consultation - Metro staff invited federally-recognized Tribes and several federal, state and local
resource, wildlife, land management and regulatory agencies to consult on the public review draft
RTP and High Capacity Transit Strategy in accordance with 23 CFR 450.316(b) and 23 CFR
450.324(f)(10). Metro convened 20 participants in two separate consultation meetings on August
17 and 22. Summaries of the consultation meetings are included in the draft public comment
report.

o Legislative hearings - The Metro Council is scheduled to hold a legislative hearing on the RTP on
September 28, 2023. Comments on the HCT Strategy may also be provided at the hearing. A final
hearing and Metro Council action on the RTP and HCT Strategy is scheduled for November 30,
2023.

Metro staff have prepared a working draft Public Comment Report and Appendices that summarizes
key themes and includes the online survey results, online feedback and copies of all emails, letters, and
transcriptions of voicemails received during the formal comment period as well as consultation
meeting summaries and transcriptions of verbal testimony provided during the public hearing.
Additional analysis will be added as the report is finalized.

1 Summary reports of engagement activities conducted to date can be found on the project website at:
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/engagement
2



http://www.oregonmetro.gov/rtp
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-E/part-450/subpart-C#p-450.316(b)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-E/part-450/subpart-C#p-450.324(f)(10)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-E/part-450/subpart-C#p-450.324(f)(10)
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/engagement

2023 RTP: DRAFT PUBLIC COMMENT REPORT AND OVERVIEW OF 9/7/23
KEY CONCERNS RAISED FOR FURTHER POLICY DISCUSSION

The draft public comment report is provided in Attachment 2. Appendices to the draft public
comment report are provided in Attachment 3.

NEXT STEPS FOR RESPONDING TO PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED

In addition, Metro staff are drafting recommended actions to respond to comments received and
identified key concerns that warrant more in-depth discussion by TPAC and MTAC on September 13
and September 20, respectively, and during subsequent meetings. The recommended actions will
include amendments to the public review draft RTP and HCT Strategy, recommendations for no change
with an explanation as to why no change is recommended, and recommendations for future work.

Draft Metro staff recommendations will be brought forward for consideration in two parts:

1. Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions Identified for Further
Discussion - aka Discussion Items for Consideration - These Metro staff recommendations, and
the public comments they respond to, raise important policy considerations that warrant
further policy discussion by MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council. TPAC and MTAC will begin
discussion of these items at their September 13 and September 20 meetings. An overview of
these topics will be provided to MPAC, JPACT and Metro Council at their September meetings.
The discussion items are summarized in Attachment 4. Potential recommended actions
will be brought forward for discussion at the October and November meetings.

2. Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions for Consideration on a
“consent basis” - aka Consent Items for Consideration - These Metro staff recommendations
address technical edits, fine-tuning, clarifications and substantive comments identified through
the public review process for consideration on a “consent basis” without further discussion.
Draft recommendations on the consent items will be sent in a supplemental memo on
September 12. TPAC members may request discussion of any of these consent items at
the September 13 workshop or October 1 meeting. MTAC members may request discussion
of any of these consent items at the September 20 or October 18 meeting. MPAC, JPACT and
Metro Council will be requested to take action on these recommendations without discussion
as part of their respective final action. However, members may request discussion of
individual consent items prior to or as part of their final action.

The draft Metro staff recommendations will become formalized as Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 23-1496
for further consideration at the October 6 TPAC meeting and October 18 MTAC meeting. MTAC will be
asked to make a recommendation to the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) on adoption of the
2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy at the October 18 meeting. TPAC will be requested to make a final
recommendation to the JPACT on adoption of the 2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy at the November 3
TPAC meeting; at that time, the Metro staff recommendation becomes a TPAC recommendation to
JPACT.

In September, MPAC and JPACT will receive an update on the process, public comments received and
topics recommended for policy discussion. JPACT discussion of these topics will continue at the
October 19 meeting. MPAC will be asked to make their respective recommendations to the Metro
Council on October 25. JPACT will consider TPAC’s recommendation on November 16. The Metro
Council is scheduled to consider MPAC and JPACT’s recommendations on November 30, before the
current RTP expires on Dec. 6, 2023.

/Attachments
1. Schedule of Key Dates for Finalizing the 2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy for Adoption
(8/29/23)

2. Working Draft Public Comment Report (9/7/23)
Draft Appendices to the Draft Public Comment Report (9/6/23)
4. Summary of Proposed Discussion Topics on Key Concerns with 2023 RTP (9/7/23)

w

3



SCOPING

ENGAGEMENT -

Oct. 2021 to
May 2022

Understand Trends

Approved
work plan and
engagement plan

PHASE

and Challenges

Develop Work Plan

and Engagement Plan

o Key Milestone

Note: Under Federal law, the current Regional Transportation Plan expires on Dec. 6, 2023.

Refine Vision,
Goals, Objectives, Needs and Revenue Investment Strategy Draft Plan

Targets and Policies Forecast Create Draft Plan Plan Adoption

2023 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN UPDATE

Key Dates for Finalizing the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan and
2023 High Capacity Transit Strategy for Adoption

September to November 2023

Dates are subject to change.

PLAN UPDATE PLAN ADOPTION

Initiate Release public Consider
call for review draft adoption of
Projects plan and 2023 RTP and

appendices appendices

PHASE PHASE

3

Sept. to January to
Dec. 2022 June 2023

g
T
m
=
m
=
5
=]
H
w
=
[=]
=
=
[=]
2
=2
(0]

Update System Build RTP Public Review of

* Metro Council decision on JPACT action and MPAC recommendation

September | 9/1 TPAC DISCUSSION: Overview of draft adoption legislation and update
on draft Metro staff recommended actions in response to public
comments

9/12 Metro DISCUSSION: Process update and feedback on draft RTP policies

Council and implementation chapter (Ch. 8)
9/13 TPAC DISCUSSION: Discuss draft Metro staff recommended actions in
Workshop response to public comments received
Review policy topics for JPACT discussion

9/20 MTAC DISCUSSION: Draft adoption legislation
Discuss draft Metro staff recommended actions in response to
public comments received
Review policy topics for MPAC discussion

9/21 JPACT DISCUSSION: Overview of adoption package (Ordinance,
Resolution & Exhibits), public comments received and policy
topics identified for JPACT discussion
Feedback on draft Ch.8 (Implementation)

9/27 MPAC DISCUSSION: Overview of adoption package (Ordinance,
Resolution & Exhibits), public comments received and policy
topics identified for MPAC discussion
Feedback on draft Ch.8 (Implementation)

oregonmetro.gov/rtp

8/29/23



https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan

2023 RTP Update: Key Dates for Finalizing the 2023 RTP 8/29/23
and 2023 HCT Strategy for Adoption - June to November 2023

9/28

Metro
Council

Public hearing (first evidentiary hearing/first read) on Ordinance
23-1496

October

10/6

TPAC

DISCUSSION: Discuss draft Metro staff recommended actions in
response to public comments and identify draft recommended
actions for JPACT discussion

10/10

Metro
Council

DISCUSSION: Discuss draft recommended actions in response to
public comments (focus on topics identified by Council for
discussion)

10/18

MTAC

ACTION: Make final recommendation to MPAC on adoption of
2023 RTP (Ordinance 23-1496) and 2023 HCT Strategy (Resolution
No. 23-5348), and recommended actions in response to public
comments

10/19

JPACT

DISCUSSION: Discuss draft recommended actions in response to
public comments (focus on topics identified by TPAC for JPACT
discussion)

10/25

MPAC

ACTION: Make final recommendation to Metro Council on
adoption of 2023 RTP (Ordinance 23-1496) and 2023 HCT
Strategy (Resolution No. 23-5348), and recommended actions in
response to public comments

November

11/3

TPAC

ACTION: Make final recommendation to JPACT on adoption of
2023 RTP (Ordinance 23-1496) and 2023 HCT Strategy (Resolution
No. 23-5348), and recommended actions in response to public
comments

11/7

Metro
Council

DISCUSSION: Discuss MPAC recommendation and TPAC
recommendation to JPACT on adoption of 2023 RTP (Ordinance
23-1496) and 2023 HCT Strategy (Resolution No. 23-5348), and
recommended actions in response to public comments

11/16

JPACT

ACTION: Make final recommendation to Metro Council on
adoption of 2023 RTP (Ordinance 23-1496) and 2023 HCT
Strategy (Resolution No. 23-5348), and recommended actions in
response to public comments

11/30

Metro
Council

ACTION: Public hearing and consider final action on adoption of
2023 RTP (Ordinance 23-1496) and 2023 HCT Strategy (Resolution
No. 23-5348), and recommended actions in response to public
comments

Items in italics are tentative




Attachment 2

oregonmetro.gov

2023 Regional Transportation Plan

Working draft
Public comment report

A summary of comments received during the final comment period for the
development of the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan from July 10 to
Aug. 25, 2023.

September 2023




Attachment 2

Metro respects civil rights

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 that requires that no person be
excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin under any program or activity for
which Metro receives federal financial assistance.

Metro fully complies with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act that requires that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability be
excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination
solely by reason of their disability under any program or activity for which Metro receives
federal financial assistance.

If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding the receipt of benefits or
services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a
complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a
discrimination complaint form, visit oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536.

Metro provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and
people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter,
communication aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1700 or TDD/TTY 503-797-1804 (8
a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair
accessible. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet’s website at
trimet.org.

Metro is the federally mandated metropolitan planning organization designated by the
governor to develop an overall transportation plan and to allocate federal funds for the region.

The Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) is a 17-member committee
that provides a forum for elected officials and representatives of agencies involved in
transportation to evaluate transportation needs in the region and to make recommendations to
the Metro Council. The established decision-making process assures a well-balanced regional
transportation system and involves local elected officials directly in decisions that help the
Metro Council develop regional transportation policies, including allocating transportation
funds. JPACT serves as the MPO board for the region in a unique partnership that requires joint
action with the Metro Council on all MPO decisions.

Project web site: oregonmetro.gov/rtp

The preparation of this report was financed in part by the U.S. Department of Transportation,
Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration. The opinions, findings
and conclusions expressed in this report are not necessarily those of the U.S. Department of
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
http://trimet.org/
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/mtip

Attachment 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCGTION. ....ctiitiitteitetentesrt ettt st te ettt e st e s bt s bt et e e e s st ss e e e e e e e bt s et e e et e s bt s et e e et e sbe e et et e st sbeemeennennesreemeennenresreemnenns 5
PUBLIC COMMENT OVERVIEW .....cotiiiiiiiiieiiieniteteteste sttt sttt st st n e sb e e e e b sbe e e nesr e sre e enennesreemnenns 6
ONLINE SURVEY SUMMARY .....oiitiittitetintiritetente st sttt st eeesees st sre et esaesresseesaesse s bt et esaensesbeeseense st sseemaennesneemeensensesresmnennen 8
1. Priority transSPOrtatioN INVESIMENTS. ..o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaeeas 8
2. L lTd o [o ol A = I ] 1 = L (=Y =4 25U 9
3. (G0 To [T T=qo Yo [ ol =T3RS 11
4, MOVING FOrWard TOZEINET .....eeeiiiiee ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e asaaaeeeeeeessnssaaaeeeeseesnsssaaaeessennnnnnens 12
EMQIIS @NA TETEEIS ..o et sae e e 14
UL oY [Tol =T Ta = T LY e L 0 1 SRR 15
(@0 o T W] =T u o] o I 0 0 [y 4 g4y PR UPPRRE 16
Aug. 17,2023 CONSUALION MEELING ... ueiie ittt e e et e s s et b e e eeeteeeeaseeeeesssaeeenasaeeessseeeeennsaesennsens 16
Aug. 22, 2023 CONSUALION MEELING ... eeiieeciiee ettt e et e e e e ate s e e s sbe e e esateeeeeasseeeenaseeeessseeeeennsaeesnnnens 16
ONlINE COMMEBNT FOMMN L.ttt ettt e e bt e bt e bt e bt e st e b e e s e e s e e b b e st e bt e st e s e e st enbeenneenseeneenneen 18
NOTICES AND NOTIFICATIONS. .....cetiiteutetitesteettetestesteeueeutastesheestenbensesheeutensensesseentensessesaeentensesbeaseensensesbeentensensesbeeneensan 21
Promotion of the public COMMENT PEIIOM......cooiuiiiiie et ettt e st e sbe e s ae e e saee e saeas 21

N L0 I =15 PP 23



Attachment 2

Appendices

Appendix A. Online Survey Public Comment Report

Appendix B. Email Comments on Public Review Draft and Strategies through
Appendix C. Letters submitted on Public Review Draft and Strategies through
Appendix D. Voicemails submitted on Public Review Draft and Strategies through
Appendix E. Written and closed caption transcript of RTP Public Hearing (7/27/23)
Appendix F. Consultation meeting summaries

Appendix G. Online comments submitted

Appendix H. Public Comment Index



Attachment 2

INTRODUCTION

Our region's economic prosperity and quality of life depend on a transportation system that
provides every person and business with access to safe, reliable, healthy and affordable ways to get
around. The Regional Transportation Plan provides a shared vision and investment strategy that
guides investments for all forms of travel to keep people connected and commerce moving
throughout the Portland metropolitan region. The plan is updated every five years to stay ahead of
future growth and address trends and challenges facing the region.

The greater Portland region continues to grow and change, requiring new and expanded
transportation options while maintaining the system of today. One-half million new residents are
expected to live in the Portland region by 2045 - about half from growing families. Communities
are becoming more racially and culturally diverse, and the aging population is growing. People are
shopping and working in new ways that will require different transportation solutions.

The region is facing urgent global and regional challenges. Climate change is happening faster than
predicted and the transportation system is not fully prepared for the expected Cascadia Subduction
Zone earthquake. Technological changes in transportation, communication and other areas are
radically altering our daily lives. The impacts of climate change, generations of systemic racism,
economic inequities and the pandemic have made clear the need for action. Systemic inequities
mean that communities have not equally benefited from public policy and investments, and our
changing climate and the pandemic has exacerbated many disparities experienced by Black,
Indigenous and people of color (BIPOC) communities, people with low income, women and other
marginalized populations. Safety, housing affordability, homelessness and public health and
economic disparities have been intensified by the global pandemic and continue to be of concern.
As the greater Portland region continues to emerge from the disruptions of the pandemic and
respond to other urgent trends and challenges, this RTP provides an opportunity for all levels of
government, community members and businesses to work together to deliver a better
transportation future.

This report summarizes the comments received for the final comment period held from July 10,
2023 through Aug. 25, 2023. Comments received will guide refinements to the 2023 Regional
Transportation Plan for consideration by the Metro Policy Advisory Committee, the Joint Policy
Advisory Committee on Transportation and the Metro Council.

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



PUBLIC COMMENT OVERVIEW

From July 10 to Aug. 25, 2023, Metro held a 45-day public
comment period on the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
and High Capacity Transit Strategy. The feedback received through
the public comment period builds on the input received through
public engagement since fall 2021, when Metro started engaging
local, regional and state agencies, Tribes and the public to update
the RTP.

During the public comment period, Metro invited comments and
feedback from members of the public, community and business
organizations, regional advisory committees, agency partners and
policymakers. There were a variety of resources available to
review and platforms to provide feedback and comments:

Public review draft materials: The public review drafts of the
2023 RTP and High Capacity Transit Strategy and their
appendices were posted on the 2023 RTP webpage at
oregonmetro.gov/rtp. Supplemental materials were also posted
to the webpage to provide interactive and accessible versions of
these documents. Those materials included executive
summaries of the 2023 RTP and High Capacity Transit Strategy
and an interactive map and project list of the RTP investment
priorities.

Online survey: An online survey provided brief overviews of
key elements of the 2023 RTP, including the project list, new
and updated policies and High Capacity Transit Strategy
priorities. The survey invited feedback on whether these key
elements of the plan will move the greater Portland’s
transportation system in the right direction. They survey also

Attachment 2

Snapshot of participation

(Comment counts are subject to
change as comments continue to
be processed by staff.)

e 663 online survey
participants providing more
than 500 comments

o 40 letters sent in by local
jurisdictions, community-
based organizations, business
and community members

e More than 50 emails

e 20 community
members provide in-
person or written
testimony at the public
hearing on July 27,
2023.

e 306 comments submitted
through the online comment
form

provided opportunities for open-ended feedback. Nearly 700 people responded to the online

survey.

Comment platforms: There were several ways for people to provide specific comments and
suggested changes to the plan, including an online comment form, email, letter and voicemail.
More than 50 emails and 20 letters were received proposing specific changes to the draft RTP
and strategies. The final public comment report documents all comments received.

Public hearing: The Metro Council held a public hearing on July 27, 2023 and received
testimony from 13 people on a range of topics. The closed caption transcript of hearing

testimony is provided in Appendix E.

Consultation meetings: Metro staff invited federal, state and local resource, land management
and regulatory agencies to consult on the public review draft 2023 RTP and High Capacity
Transit Strategy in accordance with 23 CFR 450.316. Metro convened two separate consultation
meetings on Aug. 17 (resource agencies) and Aug. 22 (federal and state agencies). These
consultation activities built on consultations with agencies earlier in the 2023 RTP process.
Summaries of consultation meetings held during public comment are included in Appendix F.

6 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023


http://www.oregonmetro.gov/rtp
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=f0dd6a1c4c6ae69bf8bb4134c0e65229&node=se23.1.450_1316&rgn=div8

Attachment 2

Throughout the 2023 RTP update, Metro invited consultation with the seven Tribes to inform
Metro’s 2023 update to the Regional Transportation Plan and staff and representatives from
multiple Tribes engaged formally and informally. No formal consultation meetings were held
with Tribes during the public comment period. Metro’s Tribal Liaison engaged with Tribes
informally during this time.

e Notifications and notices: Public notices of the comment period were provided to local
neighborhood involvement and community outreach offices at jurisdictions across the region.
Notices were published in newspapers across the region and on the Metro website. Metro also
posted to social media throughout the public comment period. Notifications were sent to the
RTP interested persons list (2,772 people) in addition to Metro’s four regional advisory
committees and their respective interested parties. Partner agencies and organizations engaged
throughout the RTP update also posted the public comment opportunity.

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 7



Attachment 2

ONLINE SURVEY SUMMARY

During the public comment survey, an online survey collected
public feedback on the investments and policies in the 2023
Regional Transportation Plan and High-Capacity Transit Strategy.
There were 663 survey participants. ! A summary of the survey
follows, and a complete report of the survey is included in
Appendix A.

The survey included introduced the 2023 Regional Transportation
Plan and included questions across five topic areas:

1. Priority types of transportation investments

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT
2. High-capacity transit priorities 2023 Regional
Transportation Plan

3. New and updated guiding policies: pricing and
s . . A blueprint for the future of transportation in
mobility policies the greater Portand regior

4. Moving forward together: feedback on what the Juiy 10,2023 eregonmetragovirtp
region should work on in the next five years.

5. Demographic information

Survey respondents were asked to select the county where they live. This question was optional,
and 283 survey participants responded. This summary includes results cross-tabulated by county

of respondents.

Table 1: Survey participation by county

Number of Percent of Percent
survey survey of
respondents respondents population
who who within the
provided provided MPA in each
their county their county county
Clackamas 35 12% 18%
Multnomah 194 69% 48%
Washington 47 17% 34%
Clark 2 0.7%
Other — 5
write in 2%

1. Priority transportation investments

The survey displayed the estimated costs of the RTP constrained list of capital projects by
investment category and asked: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well does the mix of investment in the
draft project list match your priorities? There were 389 respondents to this question. The most
frequent response was 1 (28.5% of participants). The median score for this question was 3.

1 This survey is an engagement tool for collecting feedback from the public; it is not intended to express
a scientific, statistically valid representation of all of the region’s residents.

8 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

Figure 1: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well does the mix of investment in the draft project list match your priorities?
(All responses)

30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

1 (This mix does not 5 (This mix aligns

align with my with my priorities)

priorities)

e Among Clackamas County participants (35), most people indicated that the mix of investments
aligns with their priorities. The most frequently selected score was 4 (34.3% of respondents).

e Among Multnomah County participants (194), most people indicated that the mix of investments
does not align with their priorities. The most frequently selected score was 1 (32.3% of
respondents). Among

e Washington County participants (47), most people indicated that the mix of investments does
not align with their priorities (scores of 1 or 2) but there were relatively more scores of 3 and 4
than among Multnomah County participants. The most frequently selected score among
Washington County participants was 3 (26.7% of respondents).

Participants were invited to share open-ended comments about their transportation investment
priorities Responses are included in Appendix A.

2. High capacity transit strategy

The survey displayed the High Capacity Transit Strategy Vision and

asked: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well do you think the priorities for -y "'c"g‘;'::tre‘g;“"s"
high capacity transit will improve travel in the greater Portland :
region? There were 344 responses to this question. The most
frequently response to this question was a score of 4 (34.6%) and
the second most frequently given response was a five (27.3%)
indicating that most survey participants felt that the prioritized list
of high capacity transit projects would improve travel throughout
the region.

REPORT PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT - July 10, 2023

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 9



Attachment 2

Figure 2: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well do you think the priorities for high capacity transit will improve travel in
the greater Portland region? (All responses)

40%
35%
30%

25%
20%
15%
10%
= B
0%

1 (Little to no 5 (Would greatly
|mprovement to improve travel)
travel)

e Among Clackamas County participants (33), most people indicated priorities for high capacity
transit will improve travel in the region. The most frequently selected score was 4 (33.3% of
respondents).

e Among Multnomah County participants (188 responses), most people indicated priorities for
high capacity transit will improve travel in the region. The most frequently selected score was 4
(35.1% of respondents).

e Among Washington County participants (46), the most frequently selected score was also 4
(34.8% of respondents). However, the next most frequently selected response was 3 (26.1% of
respondents).

The survey provided information about the priority corridors in the High Capacity Transit Strategy,
noting that tier 1 high capacity transit projects have been identified locally and regionally as
priorities and asked: of the corridors identified in tiers 2-4 for high capacity transit investments,
what corridors are most important to you and your community? (Select up to three.) The top three
projects that received the highest response were:

e Central City Tunnel (36.7% of all participants)
e St.Johns to Milwaukie via Cesar Chavez (30.8% of all participants)
e Beaverton - Tigard - Lake Oswego - Milwaukie - Clackamas Town Center (18.4% of all

participants)

Participant scoring of the high capacity transit corridors varied slightly between counties, but
generally participants across counties prioritized the same corridors, with some variation
Washington County’s highest rated corridor was Beaverton - Tigard - Tualatin - Oregon City
(40.5%) and Clackamas County’s second highest rated corridor was Park Ave MAX Station to
Oregon City in the vicinity of McLoughlin (41.9%).

Participants were invited to share open-ended comments about what decision-makers should
consider while the High Capacity Strategy is implemented. Responses are included in Appendix A.

10 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

3. Guiding policies

The survey provided an overview of the new and updated policies in the 2023 RTP, including the
pricing policies and mobility policies, and asked: on a scale of one to five, how well these policies
guide the region’s transportation system in the right direction?

There were 236 responses to the question about the pricing policies. The median score for this
question was 3, indicating there is generally support for the pricing policies included in the 2023
RTP.

Figure 3: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well do you think the pricing policies guide the region’s transportation system
in the right direction? (All responses)

35%
30%
25%
20%

15%

10%
-
0%

1 (Wrong direction) 3 4 5 (Right direction)

e Among Clackamas County participants (29), the most frequently selected score was 4 (27.6% of
respondents).

Among Multnomah County participants (149), the most frequently selected score was 4 (35.6%
of respondents).

Among Washington County participants (35), the most frequently selected score was 3 (28.6%
of respondents).

There were 222 responses to the question about the mobility policies. The median score
was 4.

Figure 4: On a scale of 1 to 5, how well do you think the mobility policies guide the region's transportation
system in the right direction? (All responses)

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%

10%
0%

1 (Wrong direction) 3 4 5 (Right direction)

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 11



Attachment 2

e Among Clackamas County participants (29), the most frequently selected score was 5
(27.6% of respondents).

e Among Multnomah County participants (138), the most frequently selected score was 4
(34.3% of respondents).

e Among Washington County participants (35), the most frequently selected score was 3
(28.6% of respondents).

Survey participants were asked if there is anything that cities, counties, Metro, transit providers,
and the state should consider as the policies are being implemented. Responses are included in
Appendix A.

4. Moving Forward Together

Survey participants were asked to share their thoughts about the future of transportation in
greater Portland by responding to two open-ended questions. Most frequently mentioned topics
are summarized below. A more extensive analysis of responses and the complete list of survey
responses is included in Appendix A.

The first question in this section asked: What's one big idea you have for improving greater
Portland’s transportation system? (242 responses) The second question in this section asked:
with decision-makers about transportation in greater Portland. (250 responses). Among the
responses to these two questions, the top themes were the same.

Transit (163) service (66) and transit infrastructure (68) were most frequently mentioned in
comments. Most often, participants expressed a desire to see investments in transit frequency,
longer operating hours, fewer transfers across the system, and overall improvements to network
connectivity (23). Other participants described a need for better transit infrastructure including
expansion of transit priority lanes, transit stop improvements like better lighting, trash cans, or
seating.

“Pedestrian and bicycle safety should be the greatest priorities. There is too much emphasis on moving
vehicles, while pedestrian deaths are increasing.”

“More express services (that skip stops) along existing lines (both rail and bus).”
“Increased frequency across all public modes of transportation and minimum connection times.”

“I am a single disabled parent with a young child, and every time we take public transportation there
is some incident that makes us feel unsafe. Help us feel safe in our city again make Portland the city
that everyone used to love. Fix our safety concerns.”

Active Transportation (114) was mentioned by participants. Commenters frequently mentioned a
need to shift mode choice to biking and walking, prioritize project implementation and funding for
active transportation infrastructure and craft policies to better address the needs and safety of
active transportation users. Several participants also acknowledged the connection between
investing in active transportation and addressing climate change (48).

12 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

“Getting rid of all roadway expansions, increasing access to sidewalks and bike lanes and putting some
type of local tolling in place to properly price access to the public right of way so these projects can be
implemented more quickly.”

“We need to adjust the entire transportation system to provide for greater reliance on active
transportation, remote work, online shopping, and safer public transit.”

“Keep pushing bikes, walking, and transit”

“Be radical in prioritizing non-drive along modes! Transit, walking, and biking should be the easiest,
most efficient, and most attractive options. We need radical investment to shift away from the
discouraging trend that is having significant impacts on quality of life in the region.”

“We are in a climate and affordability crisis. All modes that help alleviate these issues
(walking/biking/transit) should be receiving our support and investment.”

Safety was a frequently mentioned theme with 100 comments. Several survey respondents
mentioned a lack of perceived safety on transit as the primary reason for not using that mode. Many
commenters raised concerns about the safety of biking and walking on existing infrastructure.
Houselessness around transit stops and mixed-use trails was often cited as a barrier for using those
modes. Several comments expressed a need to prioritize safety for vulnerable road uses, in
underserved communities, and for historically marginalized groups.

“Safety! I want to feel safe in any and all modes of transportation, and I do not.”

“The main reason myself and many others | know don't use transit in Portland is because of safety
concerns, and discomfort with so many homeless people sleeping or hanging out at the stations and on
transit.”

“Pedestrian and bicycle safety should be the greatest priorities. There is too much emphasis on moving
vehicles, while pedestrian deaths are increasing.”

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 13



Attachment 2

EMAILS AND LETTERS

Almost 100 letters and emails were received suggesting recommendations to the policy chapters,
project lists and more general comments on the plan and supporting strategies. All emails and
letters received are included in Appendix B. Of these comments, all substantive comments are
under consideration by Metro staff and amendments will be recommended, when feasible, to

address the comments and edits provided. Comments about specific projects will be shared with
the sponsoring agencies.

14 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

PUBLIC HEARING - JULY 27, 2023

A public hearing on the public review draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan and High Capacity
Transit Strategy was held at a Metro Council meeting on Thursday July 27, 2023 at the Metro
Regional Center and online. The closed caption transcript of hearing testimony is included in
Appendix E of the final comment report. Twenty people testified in-person or through written
testimony on a range of topics, including:

Highlighting the region’s traffic safety crises with record pedestrian deaths and advocating for
prioritizing safety.

Highlighting the climate crisis and emphasizing the need to reduce vehicle miles traveled to meet
climate goals. There’s a need to adjust assumptions in climate modeling to reflect actual trends
in vehicles and fleet.

Support for policies in chapter 3 of the Regional Transportation Plan, with an emphasis on the
need to align investment priorities with policies and implement the policies in the plan. Redefine
chapter 8 to be an actionable plan that addresses concerns.

Concerns related to equity, including the need to prioritize investments in communities of color
and low-income communities that are most impacted by traffic crashes and most in need of
travel options.

Concerns about gentrification and the need for the RTP to invest in anti-displacement.
Improve metrics that measure the RTP’s impact on equity.
Concerns about the limitations of transit, not being fast or reliable enough.

Parking, including both support for reducing parking to meet climate goals and criticism of
reduced parking requirements near affordable housing in transit oriented development.

The region urgently needs to funding for transportation; look to the 2025 legislative package to
align 2027 RTP.

Support for pricing that is reinvested in transit, walking and biking and not widening freeways.
Consider region-wide mitigations for pricing impacts to low-income communities so every city
does not need to reinvent the wheel on how to mitigate impacts.

Three of the written testimonies were in support of Frog Ferry as a desirable alternative to
driving that would increase community connection and resilience.

One written testimony endorsed the No More Freeways comments on the Regional
Transportation Plan.

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 15



Attachment 2

CONSULTATION MEETINGS

Metro staff invited federal, state and local resource, wildlife, land management and regulatory
agencies to consult on the public review draft RTP and High Capacity Transit Strategy in accordance
with 23 CFR 450.316. Metro convened a consultation meeting for resource agencies on Aug. 17 and
a consultation meeting for state and federal agencies on Aug. 22. These meetings were the third
round in a series of consultation meetings that Metro hosted with state, federal, local and resource
agencies throughout the 2023 RTP update. Twenty staff from various agencies participated in the
consultation meetings. Summaries of consultation meetings held during the public comment period
are included Appendix F. Key themes and comments heard during the consultation meetings are
summarized below.

Metro also invited consultation with the seven Tribes to inform Metro’s 2023 update to the
Regional Transportation Plan. In alphabetical order, these Tribes included: Confederated Tribes
and Bands of the Yakama Nation, Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde, Confederated Tribes of
Siletz Indians, Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, Confederated Tribes of the
Warm Springs Reservation of Oregon, Cowlitz Indian Tribe, and the Nez Perce Tribe. Metro’s Tribal
Affairs Program staff submitted a comment that provides an overview of the priorities, concerns,
themes, and requests identified through tribal consultation and engagement with participating
Tribes during the 2023 RTP process.

Aug. 17, 2023 consultation meeting

Metro hosted a consultation meeting on Aug. 17, focused on the 2023 RTP’s environmentally
focused policies and Environmental Assessment. The following agencies attended the Aug. 17
consultation meeting: City of Portland Bureau of Environmental Services (BES), Clean Water
Services (CWS), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Metro Parks & Nature and Oregon
Department of Fish & Wildlife (ODFW). Key topics from the discussion included:

e Consideration for emerging tools, data and policies related to habitat conversation and
mitigation being developed by partner agencies.

e Early consideration for environmental impacts in transportation planning processes is
increasingly important with new NEPA timelines.

e Early coordination with local agencies can help leverage transportation projects to implement
other agencies’ needed infrastructure updates.

Aug. 22, 2023 consultation meeting

Metro hosted a consultation meeting on Aug. 22, focused on discussing and receiving comments on
the Public Review Draft of 2023 Regional Transportation Plan and process. The following agencies
attended the Aug. 22 consultation meeting: Department of Land Conservation and Development
(DLCD), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transportation Administration (FTA),
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), Southwest Washington Regional Transportation
Council (SWRTC), City of Wilsonville South Metro Area Regional Transit (SMART) and TriMet. Key
discussion topics included:

e Updated requirements under the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law.

e Appreciation for Metro ‘s collaborative and transparent 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
process.

16 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023


https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=f0dd6a1c4c6ae69bf8bb4134c0e65229&node=se23.1.450_1316&rgn=div8

Attachment 2

An interest from agency staff in supporting the work outlined in chapter 8 of the 2023 RTP,
acknowledging that there is a significant amount of urgent work to do, especially related to local
funding needs and an update of 2040.

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 17



Attachment 2

ONLINE COMMENT FORM

An online comment form was available for people who wanted to suggest specific changes or edits
to the text of the 2023 RTP and High Capacity Transit Strategy. Members of the public,
transportation agencies and organizations used the comment form to provide comments, feedback
and suggested edits to the Public Review Draft Regional Transportation Plan and High Capacity
Transit Strategy.

There were ## commenters who provided their names. These comments are attached to this
report, along with comments received by email, mail and voicemail. Of these comments, all
substantive comments are under consideration by Metro staff and amendments will be
recommended, when feasible, to address the comments and edits provided. Comments about
specific projects have been shared with the sponsoring agencies. An additional ## people
submitted comments using the online comment form and did not provide their names.

Of the comments received through the online comment form, most were submitted by community
members or organizations. Of the 307 comments, 75 were submitted by ODOT staff and one by the
City of Tualatin. City staff comments are not included in the following summary.

The following section summarizes the top reoccurring themes from online comment form
submissions. Many comments included multiple topics. For example, many of the project specific
comments were supporting or encouraging faster implementation of walking and biking
investments. Some of the comment opposing freeway projects or road capacity also supported
increased transit investments.

e Projects (92 comments)
e Support for transit investments (77 comments)
e Support for walking/biking investments (53 comments)

e Opposition to freeway projects and added road capacity (39 comments)

Additional recurring comments included concerns about climate change (17 comments) personal
safety in public space and on transit (11 comments) and traffic safety concerns (14 comments).
There were six (6) comments that called for increased investment in road maintenance and four (4)
comments that supported increased capacity for cars.

Support for transit investment was the most frequently mentioned theme among the
comments. (76 comments)

More than 55 comments suggested that the greater Portland region needs more transit. Some of
these comments were in support of specific transit projects and others called for investing in transit
generally. Additionally, 23 comments voiced the need for improved transit service.

A Max Green Line Extension to Oregon City or near to the Clackamas Community Collage would be
nice. It's really tough just trying to get to Oregon City and getting out of Oregon City like before
Midnight is a pain. The only thing reliable in and out of Oregon City are just the buses and most of the
buses there don't run very often at late nights. - Tim Roth, Portland

I want to make a comment upon how slow it is for me to get from Beaverton to SE Portland. It takes

18 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

about 2 hours with Public Transportation and I think that is why people choose cars over taking
public transportation. If there is anyway that could be looked upon that will be great. - Lei Lei Win,
Portland, African Youth Community Organization

1 live in Cornelius and plan to continue living there for some time. I drive to work right now but
would likely switch back to taking Trimet if you were to build the blue line (or some MAX extension)
out to Cornelius/Forest Grove area. — No name provided.

Support for investing in walking and bicycling. (53 comments) Many of these comments
were in support of specific bicycle and pedestrian projects.

“I don't have time to read through all those plans to say that decent reliable transportation should be
a right to everyone. Cars are destroying the planet and killing pedestrians and drivers alike.
Transportation in the city of Portland should be more reliable and easy than taking a car.” - John
Peterman

“I would like to see more % invested in bike and walk infrastructure. I rely on Portland's bike and walk
infrastructure every day and would be able to have a higher quality of life if it were improved.” - Addie
Olson

Opposition to adding capacity to freeways was mentioned in 28 comments. There were also
a handful of comments that generally opposed investing in car infrastructure (11
comments).

“We need to stop blindly investing in increased car capacity. It is a never ending cycle that will
consume our limited resources, exclude our most vulnerable, and decreases the livability of our
communities. Cars have a place but we have enough infrastructure to support that place. We now need
to focus on reducing car trips where possible to release the pressure on our existing system and build
out other modes equitably. Focusing on bike, ped, and transit in the next facade is going to pay
dividends in the long run.” - Nic Westendorf, Portland

“This [Interstate Bridge Replacement Project] is exactly what the Portland area does not need.
Providing more capacity for SOVs traveling through the city is a recipe for lowering the quality of life
for a large part of Portland'’s citizens. In essence, that is the history of I-5. - Many of the goals of this
project can be met much better via a different modes/route.” - Sean Pliska, Portland

“Why are we spending 975 million dollars on the antiquated idea that auxiliary lanes and shoulders
reduce traffic congestion? The highway cover is a nice idea, but discouraging car travel is the easiest
way to combat congestion on the interstate. Think of how much that money could do for improving
public transit, which is a much more climate conscious and equitable solution to the problem of traffic
on highways.” - Amythest Lee, Portland

Address climate change (16 comments). Many of these comments also voiced opposition for
projects that add car capacity and/or these comments voiced support for investments in
transit and walking and biking.

How is it that we're spending SO LITTLE on high impact climate strategies?? 32% for 2030 and 26%
for 204577 That is unacceptable to me for the metro transit system - transportation account for 30%
of all GHG emissions, and the metro council is fully supporting the dirtiest mode of transportation

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 19



Attachment 2

(cars) with HALF of our capital investment going towards car-based infrastructure (page 34). -
Christian Bayless, Hillsboro

As an advocate for Lloyd, for climate, and for a densely livable Portland, | am fundamentally opposed
to freeway expansion of any type, especially as it relates to the Lloyd, Lower Albina, and other
historically black neighborhoods. I am for capping and reconnecting, however, a freeway widening
project and capping/covering should not be included in the same conversation, especially as we have
an extremely small window of time to tackle emissions and decarbonization goals. - Kristin Leiber,
Lloyd EcoDistrict, Portland

Traffic safety concerns were woven throughout a range of comments, with references to
unsafe driver behavior and/or the need for enforcement. (14 comments)

“By emphasizing pedestrian and bicycle safety in the most appropriate areas and fostering
meaningful collaboration, Metro can play a pivotal role in reshaping transportation projects for the
benefit of all community members, especially those who have long been overlooked.” - Community
Cycling Center, Andando en Bicicletas Caminando (ABC)

“Install ITS and CCTV cameras (project Barbour Blvd ITS)” - Noor Sakawadin, Oregon Somali
Bravaness Community

There was also a handful of comments that referenced not feeling safe in public spaces
and/or on transit. (11 comments)

“Pre-pandemic I was a regular bus rider 5-days a week to downtown portland. Post-pandemic, [ have
not ridden the bus once. I still commute to downtown, but not on the bus.... I do not feel safe walking to
or waiting for a bus near my office. the current system needs to be maintained and made safe before
any additional regional transportation plans are made....” - No name provided, Vancouver

There were several comments that supported adding more capacity for cars. (6 comments)

“Build new roads! Maintain existing roads! Stop deliberately making life difficult for drivers! Gas tax
pay for transportation!” - No name provided

“Please support private car infrastructure. Public transit is too slow and dangerous.” - Mike Pederson,
Vancouver

20 2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

NOTICES AND NOTIFICATIONS

Public notices of the comment period were provided to B ¢
local neighborhood involvement and community
outreach offices at jurisdictions across the region.
Notices were published in the Portland Tribune,
Clackamas Review, Hillsboro News Times, Forest
Grove News Times, Valley Times News, Beaverton
Valley Times, El Latino de Hoy and The Asian Reporter
and on the Metro website. Metro also posted to social
media throughout the public comment period.
Notifications were sent to the RTP interested persons
list (nearly 2,772 people) in addition to Metro’s four :
regional advisory committees, Metro Council, their respective interested parties and the Metro
Public Engagement Review Committee. Partner agencies and community and business
organizations engaged throughout the RTP update posted notifications of the comment period
through social media and e-newsletters and other methods to inform their members and
interested parties of the comment opportunity.

Promotion of the public comment period

Metro promoted the public comment period through the website, newsfeeds, Metro’s
transportation interested parties email list, technical and policy advisory and interested parties
lists, social media and by requesting distribution by community involvement offices at
jurisdictions across the greater Portland region:

City of Beaverton
City of Forest Grove
City of Gresham
City of Happy Valley
City of Hillsboro
City of Lake Oswego
City of Milwaukie
City of Oregon City
City of Portland
City of Tigard

City of Tualatin

City of West Linn
City of Wilsonville
Clackamas County
Washington County
Multnomah County

Metro also sent notices to community based and other organizational partners, through individual
relationships built through ongoing partnerships and other engagement activities, asking them to
distribute to their organization and constituencies.

e 1000 Friends of Oregon

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 21



22

AARP

Asian Pacific American Network of Oregon
Audubon

Beyond Black

Bike Loud

Centro Cultural

Climate Solutions

Coalition of Communities of Color
Community Cycling Center

Disabilities Rights Oregon

Division Midway Alliance

East Portland Action Plan

Forward Together Action

Getting There Together

Go Lloyd (TMA)

Hacienda Community Development Corporation
Immigrant & Refugee Community Organization
Imagine Black

Intertwine Alliance

Join PDX

League of Women Voters

Momentum Alliance

Metropolitan Alliance for Workforce Equity
Native American Youth and Family Center
Next Up

OPAL

Oregon Futures Lab

Oregon Environmental Council

Oregon Just Transition

Oregon League of Conservation Voters
Oregon Walks

Ride Connection

Street Roots

Street Smart

Sunrise Movement PDX

The Street Trust

Urban Greenspace Institute

Urban League of Portland

Verde

Washington County Ignite

Westside Transportation Alliance

Youth Collective - The Cen

Attachment 2

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023



Attachment 2

NEXT STEPS

Later this fall, MPAC and JPACT will recommend action on the 2023 RTP and High Capacity Transit
Strategy to the Metro Council. Metro Council will consider final action on the 2023 RTP and High
Capacity Transit Strategy on Nov. 30, 2023.

Figure 5. Timeline for 2023 Regional Transportation Plan update

PLAN ADOPTION

SCOPING PLAN UPDATE

Approved Initiate Release public Consider
work plan and Call for review draft adoption of
engagement plan Projects plan and 2023 RTP and

appendices

1 appendices

PHASE ‘ PHASE PHASE

Sept. to
Dec. 2022

Oct. 2021 to
May 2022

January to
June 2023

ENGAGEMENT = ———-—-=  =—e—eeemeeeeee

2
2
-
m
4
m
=
=
>
=
=]
=
]
=
(=]
z
3
(=]
=~
z
(]

Understand Trends Refine Vision, Update System Build RTP Public Review of
and Challenges Goals, Objectives, Needs and Revenue Investment Strategy Draft Plan
Develop Work Plan  Targets and Policies Forecast Create Draft Plan Plan Adoption

and Engagement Plan

o Key Milestone * Metro Council decision on JPACT action and MPAC recommendation

2023 RTP Public Comment Report | September 2023 23



Attachment 2

If you picnic at Blue Lake or take your kids to the Oregon Zoo, enjoy symphonies at the Schnitz or
auto shows at the convention center, put out your trash or drive your car — we've already crossed
paths.

So, hello. We're Metro - nice to meet you.

In a metropolitan area as big as Portland, we can do a lot of things better together. Join us to help
the region prepare for a happy, healthy future.

Stay in touch with news, stories and things to do.
oregonmetro.gov/news

Follow Oregon Metro

DOdER

Metro Council President
Lynn Peterson

Metro Councilors

Ashton Simpson, District 1
Christine Lewis, District 2
Gerritt Rosenthal, District 3
Juan Carlos Gonzalez, District 4
Mary Nolan, District 5

Duncan Hwang, District 6

Auditor
Brian Evans

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736
503-797-1700

September 2023



DRALCTL Attachment 3

Caution: This document is 700 pages and 72MB. Click here to
download document electronically.

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT
2023 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Public Comment Report
Appendices

September 6, 2023

Appendix A. Online Survey Public Comment Report

Appendix B. Email Comments on Public Review Draft and Strategies through 8/25/23

Appendix C. Letters submitted on Public Review Draft and Strategies through 8/25/23

Appendix D. Voicemails submitted on Public Review Draft and Strategies through 8/25/23
Appendix E. Written and closed caption transcript of RTP Public Hearing (7/27/23)

Appendix F. Consultation Meeting Summaries

Appendix G. Online Comments submitted on Public Review Draft and Strategies through 8/25/23
Appendix H. Public Comment Index

oregonmetro.gov/rtp


ellisk
Typewritten Text
Caution: This document is 700 pages and 72MB. Click here to
download document electronically.

ellisk
Typewritten Text

https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/09/07/2023-RTP-public-comment-book-20230907.pdf

ATTACHMENT 4

TPAC DISCUSSION DRAFT
9/7/23

Proposed Discussion Topics on Key Concerns
with 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

This document summarizes five topics identified by Metro staff for more in-depth policy
discussion by the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), the Joint Policy Advisory
Committee on Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council. For each topic, a summary of
key concerns raised during the public comment period. Potential recommended actions will
be developed to serve as a starting point for discussion in October and November. The
potential recommended actions are anticipated to reflect a combination of potential technical
and policy recommendations.

Discussion Topic 1- Investment Emphasis/Investment Mix

Key concerns

1.

Too much emphasis on throughway
investment relative to other
investments.

Not enough transit service relative to
throughway investment levels,
particularly in the near-term.

Not enough emphasis on completing
gaps in active transportation network
relative to throughway investment
levels, particularly in the near-term.
Not enough emphasis onaddressing the
safety needs of urban arterials relative
to throughway investment levels,
particularly in the near-term.

Not enough emphasis on reducing
climate pollution relative to throughway
investment levels, particularly in the
near-term.

' Potential recommended actions

To be developed pending further discussion.




ATTACHMENT 4
TPAC DISCUSSION DRAFT
9/7/23

Discussion Topic 2 - RTP Pricing Policy Application to Toll Projects

Key concerns \ Potential recommended actions
1. Concern about whether future MTIP
amendments to advance ODOT tolling To be developed pending further discussion.

program projects will be subject to the

RTP pricing policies and actions.

2. Toll project analysis has been
insufficient to understand the impacts of
potential diversion from tolling on traffic
and safety on the local system.

a. Itisunclear how much diversion
from tolling is actually occurring and
how much is local travel that should
be using local system versus long
distance travel that should be using
throughways.

b. Concern for the potential for more
fatal and serious injury crashes on
urban arterials due to diversion of
throughway travel on arterial streets
that are already high injury
corridors. This information is needed
to identify potential mitigation
projects.

c. Need to recognize that diversion is
highly dependent on local conditions
(e.g., 1-205 in West Linn vs. in East
Portland) and therefore must be
addressed at the mobility corridor
level.

3. Concern that ODOT has not
demonstrated how tolling projects in the
RTP (e.g. [-205 Toll Project and
Regional Mobility Pricing Project) will
help meet state and regional climate and
safety goals and GHG reduction targets.




ATTACHMENT 4

TPAC DISCUSSION DRAFT
9/7/23

Discussion Topic 3 - Increasing regional transportation investments

Key concerns

1.

Inadequate funding to meet the region’s
currently identified needs and RTP goals;
the gas tax continues to fall behind in the
near-term and not viable in long-term, yet
it is unclear whether new revenues such
as congestion pricing, VMT /road user fee
will fill this gap.

. There is not regional agreement on how to

prioritize existing or new funding.

To be developed pending further discussion.

\ Potential recommended actions

Discussion Topic 4 - Mobility Policy Implementation

Key concerns

1.

Concerns about how (measures and
processes) and when the Regional
Mobility Policy must be implemented
through Transportation System Plans and
local comprehensive plan amendments
(land use decisions).

‘Potential recommended actions

To be developed pending further discussion.




ATTACHMENT 4

TPAC DISCUSSION DRAFT
9/7/23

Discussion Topic 5 - Climate Tools and Analysis

Key concerns

1.

Concern that the RTP climate analysis and
Climate Smart Strategy did not
meaningfully inform RTP investment
priorities, as indicated by the high level of
investment in freeway projects relative to
investment in transit, biking and walking
projects.

Concern that key Statewide
Transportation Strategy (STS)
assumptions provided by the state for the
RTP climate analysis are lagging, in
particular new road user charges, vehicle
fleet mix, share of electric vehicles, and
vehicle fleet turnover. Commenters noted
several specific areas where the
documentation is inadequate or fails to
describe how state policies and programs
will reverse trends that currently appear
to be moving in the wrong direction and
driving an increase in carbon emissions.
Concern that Metro and the State are
using VisionEval for climate analysis in
the STS, STIP and RTP, whereas MOVES,
the federally-approved emissions analysis
tool, is being used for emissions analysis
of major projects in the NEPA process.

‘Potential recommended actions

To be developed pending further discussion.




Materials following this page were distributed at the meeting.



@ Metro
Memo

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Date: September 13, 2023

To: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC), Metro Technical Advisory
Committee (MTAC) and interested parties

From: Kim Ellis, AICP, RTP Project Manager

Subject: 2023 RTP Comment Log: Summary Comments Received and Draft Metro Staff
Recommended Actions - Subject to Refinement

The attached RTP comment log identifies proposed amendments to respond to comments received
between from July 10 to Aug. 25, 2023. This document will be further refined and finalized for
discussion and consideration by TPAC and MTAC at the October meetings.

This document summarizes recommended changes to respond to all substantive comments received
during the comment period. New wording is shown in underline; deleted words are crossed out in
bold strikeout.

The comments and recommended actions are organized in two parts:

1. Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions for Consideration on a
“consent basis” — aka Consent Items for Consideration - These Metro staff recommendations
address technical edits, fine-tuning, clarifications and substantive comments identified through
the public review process for consideration on a “consent basis” without further discussion.
MTAC members may request discussion of any of these consent items at the September
20 meeting. An updated draft will be provided to TPAC and MTAC for the October
meetings.

2. Summary of Comments Received and Recommended Actions Identified for Further
Discussion - aka Discussion Items for Consideration - These Metro staff recommendations, and
the public comments they respond to, raise important policy considerations that warrant
further policy discussion by MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council. TPAC and MTAC will begin
discussion of these items at their September 13 and September 20 meetings. The discussion
items are summarized in Attachment 3. Potential recommended actions will be brought
forward for discussion at the October and November meetings.

The draft Metro staff reccommendations will become formalized as Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 23-1496
for further consideration at the October 6 TPAC meeting and October 18 MTAC meeting. MTAC will be

asked to make a recommendation to MPAC on adoption of the 2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy at the
October 18 meeting. TPAC will be requested to make a final recommendation to the JPACT on adoption
of the 2023 RTP and 2023 HCT Strategy at the November 3 TPAC meeting; at that time, the Metro staff
recommendation becomes a TPAC recommendation to JPACT.

In September, MPAC and JPACT will receive an update on the process, public comments received and
topics recommended for policy discussion. JPACT discussion of these topics will continue at the
October 19 meeting. MPAC will be asked to make their respective recommendations to the Metro
Council on October 25. JPACT will consider TPAC’s recommendation on November 16. The Metro
Council is scheduled to consider MPAC and JPACT’s recommendations on November 30, before the
current RTP expires on Dec. 6, 2023.



Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
1 Bubenik Frank City of Tualatin Letter 8/24/2023 HCT Strategy Y Request that the RTP be revised to show the the OR 99W |No change recommended at this time. In addition to WCCC and WCCC TAC, a N C
and I-5 corridors as Tier 2 (HCT) corridors. The proposed |working group worked closely on all of the milestones for the strategy that
High-Capacity Transit Strategy was based on modeling that |included representation from Washington County. Guided by the policy
does not consider trips into or out of the region, and thus |framework, we worked with that group of partners to develop criteria and an
underestimates the demand and need for transit in the  |approach for reimagining a stronger, expanded system best serving growing and
Tualatin area and similar communities near the edges of the |changing regional needs that:
region. In particular, this results in a lower ‘tier’ for the OR |- forwards regional goals and investment priorities within the 2018 RTP HCT
99W corridor and essentially missed the I-5 corridor. Several |Readiness and Assessment criteria (previewed at the summer meetings);
thousand employees in Tualatin commute from outside the |- maintains consistency with the Federal Transit Administration’s Capital
Metro region, and we would estimate similar percentages |Investment Grant Program project justification criteria to tie to funding historically
for similar cities. If good transit service met these critical to implementation success;
commuters on OR 99W near Sherwood or on I-5 near -reflects the greater Portland region’s history of success with and capacity to
Wilsonville, they could enjoy riding transit to employers in |engage in the Federal Project Development process (advancing one corridor every
Portland, Hillsboro, Tualatin, and the rest of the region while |three years); and
the region would significantly reduce overall VMT and - considers investments within the RTP horizon (at a reasonable scale, <20
resulting emissions. We are confident that if all trips are  |corridors in 2009 High Capacity Transit Plan and 2018 Regional Transit Strategy)
considered, the OR 99W and I-5 corridors would more than |and beyond.
justify being Tier 2 corridors; we respectfully request that [The tier buckets reflect the corridors that demonstrate the most needs near-term,
the RTP be revised to show them as Tier 2 corridors. best meet regional goal outcomes, and have the greatest competitiveness for
federal funding, limited to a reasonable number based on timelines tied to and our
historical regional capacity for advancing corridors. Since the criteria and guiding
policy framework were developed closely with partners, this is the basis for the
technical results used to establish the tiers with room for technical adjustments.
This is a different process than establishing corridors of regional priority like the
funding measure did for instance, although that framework did influence the
overall vision. On specific corridors of concern:
WES/I-5 corridor: Initial letters we received from Tualatin and Washington County
included requests to continue to consider WES for investments (still a strategic
investment in project #10900 and #11751), for instance in addition to rapid bus on
Hall Boulevard, and for considering improvements nearer-term. This is something
we are also identifying in the forthcoming corridor-specific matrix and something
for consideration for Chapter 8 in the next RTP. While there is strong community
support for this corridor and good employment density, the land use demand and
policies and key destinations and access for the corridor could still be
strengthened. This corridor also is not serving a higher proportion of regional
equity focus areas in line with our goals. Additionally, the cost per rider is very high
and there is an added challenge in pursuing additional federal funding on this
corridor due to the fact that we have already received funding and need a very
strong case for how additional funding could support more ridership and why we
are confident in the outcome. This is a key reason that we have proposed
additional corridor study take place to identify the correct solution(s) from the
several options available. For all of the reasons above, this corridor is not yet
showing the readiness for high capacity investment indicative of a Tier 2
designation.
2 lannarone |Sarah The Street Letter 8/25/2023 |HCT Strategy N Expresses support for the transit policies and proposed No change recommended; comment expressed support for transit policies and N C
Trust pipeline of near- and long-term regional HCT investment investment tiers.

tiers, understanding not all of the corridors identified in the
vision are ready for high capacity transit and that the region
must make hard choices about prioritizing where to invest
first by considering which corridors will provide the most
benefit now and in the future.

10f116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
3 Lueb Heidi City of Tigard |Letter 8/25/2023 |HCT Strategy Southwest N Expresses support for Southwest Corridor Light Rail project |No change recommended. Comment noted. N C
Corridor LRT as a “Tier 1” near-term priority corridor.
4 Lueb Heidi City of Tigard |Letter 8/25/2023 |HCT Strategy N Expresses support of newly identified “Tier 3” HCT routes C4 |[No change recommended. Comment noted. N C
and C6 that would provide new and improved transit
connectivity to destinations and cities within Clackamas
County.
5 Lueb Heidi City of Tigard |Letter 8/25/2023 |HCT Strategy N Expresses disappointment that “Tier 4” C2, the Pacific No change recommended. Comment noted. N C
Highway corridor between Tigard and Sherwood, received
the lowest tier ranking, but understands, and commits to
working to advance the corridor along with “Tier 4” corridor,
C3.
6 Charles John Cascade Policy |Letter 8/25/2023|HCT Strategy Y Recommends significant changes to the high-capacity transit |Highway 99W: The Highway 99W corridor is showing both land use and TBD C
Institute strategy to serve job centers other than downtown Portland |employment demand, however only at the level of over 11,000 potential transit
and support smaller services that provide better coverage |attractions in 2040. Work during the transportation funding measure also
throughout the region. Argues that high-capacity transitin  |identified some key corridor needs to give us a head start. But there is a lot of work
the region has not been successful and that Portland is not |to do in promoting high density land use and then time for the market to respond
recovering from pandemic-era losses of jobs downtown. in implementing that and other key destinations, even considering out of region
trips which in whole for this area are only about 10,000 more (not necessarily
transit attractions for this corridor). This corridor also is not serving a higher
proportion of regional equity focus areas in line with our goals. Travel times here
are also relatively good compared to other areas of the region. Again, even when
considering inter-regional trips, this corridor is not yet showing the readiness for
high capacity investment indicative of a Tier 2 designation.
7 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023|HCT Strategy Y Reconcile report title with text- change "High Capacity Amend as requested. Y C
Transit Strategy Update" references throughout to "High
Capacity Transit Strategy".
8 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Use FTA's defined terms to distinguish between corridor- Amend as requested. Y C
based BRT and fixed guideway BRT. Where BRT is used to
indicate fixed guideway, spell this out throughout.
9 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy N No change proposed. Expressed concern that the No change proposed to address this comment, but changes are proposed for the Y C

investments/benefits described often result in costs
associated with a New Starts project.

more detailed comment below. This is an important point. Even when developing a
New Starts project to provide these features and investments there are many trade
offs to consider as the level of need is often much greater than the transit project
can provide on its own and why equitable development strategies are important
and the report focuses on investments that partners can make on a corridor ahead
of the transit investment to increase readiness. However, there is also benefit to
consider (and different trade-offs) in a more nimble, flexible approach (including
Small Starts but also for New Starts). This is an important regional conversation
and something key to work on together as part of the BRT Implementation Plan
which takes the next step from the HCT Strategy to answer these questions.

20f116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
10 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: "Definition of Rapid Bus: This term refers |Amend as requested. Y C
to rubber-tired HCT modes that include bus rapid transit
(BRT) and frequent express (FX)-style HCT services. In
general, these services offer the core elements of HCT
including transit priority, enhanced amenities, and frequent,
branded service. Rapid bus is distinct from “better bus”
improvements that focus on spot treatments for speed and
reliability."
11 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Add to end of second paragraph: The level of amenities vary |Amend HCT strategy to add a call-out box that better describes the challenges and Y C
depending on the type of transit project or corridor project. |trade-offs but also opportunities we see in a more nimble, flexible approach and
that highlights how this will be explored as part of the BRT Implementation Plan.
Text to be developed in partnership with TriMet.
12 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: "It also refers to amenities such as Amend as requested. Y C
covered waiting areas, real-time bus or train arrival
information, schedules, ticket machines, enhanced lighting,
benches, bicycle parking, and even eivic-artand commercial
services."
13 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: "At the same time, planning for the new |Amend as requested. Y C
Southwest Corridor MAX line is-moving-forwardremains a
priority.
14 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Remove FX vs Better Bus box. Revise graphic to replace "FX" with "rapid bus". The text accompanying the graphic Y C
also already qualifies it noting that it is identifying "common treatments" to
compare the difference in level of investment between rapid bus and better bus.
15 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend to add “Better Bus” yellow dot to “Transit Signal Add yellow Better Bus dot to transit signal priority and add new category for Y C
Priority” and “Street Access Improvements” "Station Access Improvements" and add Better Bus yellow dot and green rapid bus
dot.
16 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Clarify what is meant by "lower tier corridors". Amend as follows: “In most cases, tower-tier corridors in lower tiers (Tiers 3 and 4) Y C
do not have sufficient land use, population, and employment density in place to be
competitive for increased investment in the short term.”
17 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y 10. Amend second sentence in call-out box as follows: Amend as requested. Y C
“Additional community priorities are focused on making high
capacity transit for faster and more comfortable to use:”
18 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: “For transit investments to meet success |Rather than including notes like these throughout the report, we recommend a call+ Y C

and be utilized to its fullest potential, when projects are
funded through New Starts grants, other elements and

improvements around the transit service and infrastructure
are needed; projects delivered with Small Starts grants will
need to be more focused on transit investments.”

out box so we can better describe the challenges and trade-offs but also
opportunities we see in a more nimble, flexible approach and that highlights how
this will be explored as part of the BRT Implementation Plan. Text to be developed
in partnership with TriMet.

30f116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
19 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Add table title and text below table: These elements are Amend as follows to add the following figure title: "Figure 18. Transit-supportive Y C
scalable depending on the level of investments in the element details" and reconcile the following figure numbers. No change
corridor. recommended to the table text- the introductory sentence for this table notes that
these are all the things that can be considered as strategies through the corridor
planning process.
20 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: “The role of community engagement... No change recommended. Community engagment strategies identifying and Y C
These events cement residents’ ownership of the narrative |addressing key community needs are a critical part of transit project planning and
surrounding their communities and the changes they wish to |meant to be done in partnership so that this responsibility is not solely the transit
see. [New paragraph] These practices generally apply to agency's responsibility.
larger projects with exclusive transit guideways. Smaller-
scale projects will feature engagement strategies tailored to
the level of investment.”"
21 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023|HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: “For larger projects with exclusive transit |Rather than including notes like these throughout the report, we recommend a call+ Y c
guideways, developing station area plans are an early action |out box so we can better describe the challenges and trade-offs but also
in corridor development that help tailor local zoning codes |opportunities we see in a more nimble, flexible approach and that highlights how
and policies to the local context and community-supported |this will be explored as part of the BRT Implementation Plan. Text to be developed
vision.” in partnership with TriMet.
22 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023|HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: “Commitment to corridor: larger projects |Rather than including notes like these throughout the report, we recommend a call+ Y C
with exclusive transit guideways delivers economic potential |out box so we can better describe the challenges and trade-offs but also
to entire corridors, and local jurisdictions should be ready...” |opportunities we see in a more nimble, flexible approach and that highlights how
this will be explored as part of the BRT Implementation Plan. Text to be developed
in partnership with TriMet.
23 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend as follows: “However, large-scale HCT investments  |Rather than including notes like these throughout the report, we recommend a call- Y c
can incentivize redevelopment of property along project out box so we can better describe the challenges and trade-offs but also
corridors and have historically been one of several opportunities we see in a more nimble, flexible approach and that highlights how
contributors to ongoing land value and rent increases.” this will be explored as part of the BRT Implementation Plan. Text to be developed
in partnership with TriMet.
24 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend the first sentence of the first section as follows: “For |No change recommended. Equitable development strategies identifying and Y C
larger projects with exclusive transit guideways, creating an |addressing key community needs are a critical part of transit project planning and
equitable development framework that guides all land use  |meant to be done and implemented in partnership so that this responsibility is not
and development planning in a project corridor helps a solely the transit agency's or transit project's responsibility. Part of this work is
community evaluate its guiding principles to ensure that outlining where those opportunities and roles lie.
equity is an ongoing part of the planning and development
conversation, and includes affordable housing and anti-
displacement strategies.
25 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend the first section as follows: “This means investing in |Amend as follows: “This means investing in the streetscape around transit station Y C
the streetscape around transit station areas, completing areas, completing pedestrian and bicycle networks and to HCT stations, and
pedestrian and bicycle networks and to HCT stations, and partnering with mobility service providers to ensure people can safely reach HCT
partnering with mobility service providers to ensure people |services. Since HCT projects in the region are context senstive, the level and types
can safely reach HCT services. The level of investment will of investment are likely vary by project and corridor.”
vary by project and corridor.”
26 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Amend third bullet under the second paragraph in the Amend as requested. Y C

Federal Funding and Eligibility section as follows: “include
features such as traffic signal priority for buses;eff-boeard-
¢ ion; ide facifities—etc”

4 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
27 O'Brien Tara TriMet Email 8/22/2023 |HCT Strategy N No change proposed. Expressed appreciation for including a |No change recommended. N C
point about opportunities vs challenges in lessons learned
from early regional rapid bus implementation.
28 Ottenad Mark City of Email 7/21/23 |HCT Strategy WES Commuter Y Amend the HCT Strategy to include and prioritize the WES  |No change recommended. The extension of commuter rail to Salem is included in N C
Wilsonville Rail extension to Salem. the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Transit Network Vision (as shown on the
map on page 3-106 the dark pink line for commuter rail extends beyond
Wilsonville into Marion County). However, while commuter rail is a high capacity
transit mode this connection is actually classified as inter-city rail which is a distinct
classification under a separate policy (Policy 8 on page 3-117). That is because it is
a connection that extends beyond Metro’s planning boundary, making it inter-city
rail (like Amtrak) which is also guided by the Oregon State Rail Plan due to the
State’s role in inter-city rail service planning, especially along the entire Portland to
Eugene corridor (and the additional considerations that come into play with that
like balancing passenger and freight rail needs). As far as priority within the inter-
city network, the 2023 RTP does note in Chaper 3 under transit policy 8 on page 3-
117: “When developing inter-regional rail service, this corridor alignment [WES
extension] should take priority for improving passenger rail service between
Eugene and Portland in the nearer-term future.”
29 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 [HCT Strategy Y The figure used to present the general vision (p 6) is Amend the HCT Strategy to hyperlink Figure 1 to the latest 2040 Growth Concept Y c
Councilor evocative but also is a bit too general to clarify the concepts |online interactive map. Figure 1 on page 6 of the High Capacity Transit Strategy is
for our area. Two items of note are these: (1) we do not the vision map and growth concept from The Nature of 2040 that describes the
clarify either how we identify “regional centers” compared |urban design concepts in more detail developed as part of a collaborative region-
to “town centers” nor (2) do we identify the “regional wide process and with the aspirations this concept supports descrived in Our Place
centers” that are critical in our area. To that point, we clearly|in the World (both available on Metro's website). As such, this map is an excerpt
have a “central city” in Portland, but it is important to note |included in the HCT strategy (which also informed development of the strategy in
that we now have at least three regional centers, i.e. considering future land use growth) but developed through a different planning
Vancouver, Beaverton, and Hillsboro. It is unclear (perhaps |effort and maintained through a different process. Though it is difficult to see in
arguable) whether the West Linn-Gladstone-Oregon City the HCT Strategy at the report scale and given the slight differences in shade used
area is a “town center” or a “regional center” and the same |in the symbology, the differences are clear in the full size map online. Gresham,
can be said of Gresham-Troutdale and also the Wilsonville- |Gateway, Clackamas Town Center, Oregon City, Washington Square, Beaverton,
Tualatin-Sherwood job triangle. Tanasbourne/ AmberGlen and Hillsboro are all regional centers while the other
areas shown in lighter purple (including Troutdale, Wilsonville, Tualatin and
Sherwood among others) are town centers. Local jurisdictions have the discretion
to propose redesignating and/or identifying new centers which are subject to
differing requirements outlined in Metro's Regional Functional Plan and
implementing documents (Urban Growth Management Functional Plan and
Regional Transportation Functional Plan). Additionally, Chapter 8 of the RTP does
identify future work on the 2040 refresh and this comment has been forwarded to
staff working on the update.
30 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y It is notable that the “Prioritized Investment” figure shows |[Amend Figure 16 to add symbology to the legend identifying the regional and town Y C
Councilor key commercial “activity” centers such as center bubbles shown on the map.

Tanasbourne/Amber Glen or Washibgton Square, but these
“activity” centers are not conceptualized on the HCT Vision
figure. It seems unclear whether they are what we define as
“regional centers” or a category intermediate between
“town centers” and “regional centers”.

50f116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
31 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N One further note is that this schematic identifies what looks |No change proposed. The first HCT Plan for light rail envisioned a more "hub and N C
Councilor like a “ring” connection of radial spokes to the regional spoke" network connecting regional centers to the central city which has been
centers, whereas our current planning vision stops short of |largely completed (with the exception of extensions to Oregon City and
that goal. If these newer areas are to be considered Vancouver). This updated HCT strategy uses rapid bus as a tool for envisioning new
“regional centers”, then a longer term vision would seem to |connections of regional centers and town centers to expand the network.
suggest a more complete “ring” system.
32 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y The whole concept of HCT utility hinges on the identification [No change recommended. Metro's Atlas of Mobility Corridors: User Guide N C
Councilor of critical corridors. For individual travel, corridors fall into  |summarizes the different mobility functions of key regional corridors for moving
three categories: Interregional, intraregional, and local. In  |cars via limited access freeways or less limited access highways, people riding
addition freight and commerce are other critical corridor transit and in need of a future high capacity solution, people riding bikes and
functions. Commerce implies local business and service as  |walking and in need of a connecting trail and also freight goods. Not all corridors
opposed to interregional freight hauling. The key feature of |serve all functions. This information also informed the High Capacity Transit
RTP corridors is the “intraregional” aspect. All corridors of  |Strategy. Additionally, local access was a consideration in the assessment criteria
import for the RTP will have an “intraregional” function but [for evaluating corridors and one of the reasons the transit solutions are context
will vary as to other functions, e.g. OR 43 is of marginal sensitive (looking different from one corridor to another).
“local” and “interregional” function and essentially no
“freight” value. HCT corridors are a subset of “intraregional”
corridors and are those whose dominant function is for
“intraregional and local” conveyance. A complete listing of
all critical RTP corridors would make it easier to see how the
HCT corridors fall into the overall RTP picture. As an
example, Marine Drive is a critical corridor but is primarily
“freight”, and so is not an HCT consideration. Hwy 26 is
primarily “interregional” and so only portions of it qualify for
HCT due to limited “local” access.
33 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y 1) It seems impractical to show corridors such as C20 as No change recommended. Corridor C20 (St. Johns to Milwaukie via Cesar Chavez) N C
Councilor single corridors since it is unlikely there are large number of |is a longer corridor and we know given the funding cap associated with New Starts
“thru” riders on this route (i.e. St. Johns to Milwaukie)...it that segmentation will be a consideration, similar to other recent planning efforts.
would seem more practical to list as two connected However, this would be considered in developing the project as part of the locally-
corridors, e.g. C20A and C20B preferred alternative and its implementing design undertaken as part of the
corridor planning process.
34 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y 2) The short “vision corridor” from Beaverton to Washington |No change recommended. Corridor C3 (Beaverton to Wilsonville in the vicinity of N C
Councilor Square is not labeled. WES) spans from Beaverton to Wilsonville. This corridor has three potential
options for a High Capacity Transit solution: upgrading the Line 76 to rapid bus,
improvements to increase WES frequency and service, or extension of light rail.
Segmentation may be a consideration for the rapid bus or light rail solutions. Both
the mode and alignment extent would be considered in developing the project as
part of the locally-preferred alternative and its implementing design undertaken as
part of the corridor planning process.
35 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Corridor C-4 implies a new bridge over the Willamette River, [No change recommended. Corridor C4 follows the existing railroad bridge which N C
Councilor a concept that has not been formally presented, and in fact, |presents a potential future rail crossing opportunity. The alignment extent and/or
this C-4 is really 3 corridors: Clackamas to Milwaukie, segmentation would be considered in developing the project as part of the locally-
Milwaukie to Lake Oswego, and Lake Oswego to preferred alternative and its implementing design undertaken as part of the
Tigard/Beaverton, the point being that each of these will corridor planning process.
likely serve different riderships.
36 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Lake Oswego to Tualatin is an important corridor (Boones Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Councilor Ferry) and is not shown...this could arguably be an HCT.

6 0f 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
37 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y C-6 is really 2 disparate corridors with the inflection at No change recommended. While Corridor C6 (Beaverton - Tigard - Lake Oswego - N C
Councilor Tualatin/Lake Grove. Milwaukie - Clackamas Town Center) is long, the alignment extent and/or
segmentation would be considered in developing the project as part of the locally-
preferred alternative and its implementing design undertaken as part of the
corridor planning process.
38 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Why is Damascus shown and without any connectivity? For |No change recommended. Many of these connections would actually be classified N C
Councilor completeness other non-Metro jurisdictions might be shown |as inter-city rail which is a distinct classification under a separate classification in
(e.g. North Plains, Canby, Sandy). the transit network/spectrum and guided by a different policy (Policy 8 on page 3-
117). That is because they extend beyond Metro’s planning boundary, making it
inter-city rail (like Amtrak) which is also guided by the Oregon State Rail Plan due
to the State’s role in inter-city rail service planning, especially along the entire
Portland to Eugene corridor (and the additional considerations that come into play
with that like balancing passenger and freight rail needs). While the 2009 High
Capacity Transit Plan included a corridor further to the east connecting to
Damascus, this was moved west to align with the Clackamas to Columbia corridor
in the 2018 Regional Transit Strategy. The High Capacity Transit takes frequent bus
to the next level and Damascus is not currently envisioned for frequent service in
the future based on its character. Rather, the Access to Transit Study will consider
whether first/last mile transit solutions to Happy Valley are a better fit.
39 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N Tualatin-Sherwood is a critical corridor for commerce and No change recommended. The Tualatin-Sherwood corridor is a mobility corridor in N C
Councilor freight, though not for HCT purposes, but with job the atlas identified for freight and highway functions. This comment is also noted
expansions might become one. for future work.
40 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 [HCT Strategy Y Concerned that C2 (OR 99W) remains a tier 4.0R 99W No change recommended. In addition to WCCC and WCCC TAC, we worked closely with a working N c
Councilor serves all functions: local, inter, intra, commerce and freight. group on all of the milestones for the strategy which included representation from Washington

County. Guided by the policy framework, we worked with that group of partners to develop criteria
and an approach for reimagining a stronger, expanded system best serving growing and changing
regional needs that:

o forwards regional goals and investment priorities within the 2018 RTP HCT Readiness and
Assessment criteria (previewed at the summer meetings);

0 maintains consistency with the Federal Transit Administration’s Capital Investment Grant
Program project justification criteria to tie to funding historically critical to implementation success;

o reflects the greater Portland region’s history of success with and capacity to engage in the
Federal Project Development process (advancing one corridor every three years); and

o considers investments within the RTP horizon (at a reasonable scale, <20 corridors in 2009 High
Capacity Transit Plan and 2018 Regional Transit Strategy) and beyond.
The tier buckets then reflect the corridors that demonstrate the most needs near-term, best meet
regional goal outcomes, and have the greatest competitiveness for federal funding, limited to a
reasonable number based on timelines tied to and our historical regional capacity for advancing
corridors. Since we developed that criteria and its guiding policy framework closely with partners,
we’re relying on its technical results to establish the tiers with room for technical adjustments. So it
is a different process than establishing corridors of regional priority like the funding measure did for
instance, although that framework did influence the overall vision. The OR 99W corridor is showing
both land use and employment demand, however only at the level of over 11,000 potential transit
attractions in 2040 (compared to hundred thousangs for many Tier 2 corridors). Work during the
transportation funding measure also identified some key corridor needs to give us a head start. But
there is a lot of work to do in promoting high density land use and then time for the market to
respond in implementing that and other key destinations, even considering out of region trips which
in whole for this area are only about 10,000 more (not necessarily transit attractions for this
corridor). This corridor also is not serving a higher proportion of regional equity focus areas in line
with our goals. Travel times here are also relatively good compared to other areas of the region.
Again, even when considering inter-regional trips, this corridor is not yet showing the readiness for
high capacity investment indicative of a Tier 2 designation. However, one key point is that the High
Capacity Transit Strategy provides a pipeline prioritizing these types of transit investments by
corridor. It does not apply to all transportation investments on the corridor or limit other corridor
planning activities like the broader Westside Multimodal Improvements Study focused on US 26.

7 0f 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023

Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
41 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y No “vision” corridor is shown for the Sherwood/King City/  |Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Councilor Murray-Scholls/Hillsboro corridor...a corridor with
substantial development planned. Current plans are for up
to 10,000 new homes along this corridor.
42 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N C-3 is evocative, but what does “in the vicinity of” imply - No change recommended. Corridor C3 (Beaverton to Wilsonville in the vicinity of N C
Councilor WES can become an effective HCT corridor only with the WES) spans from Beaverton to Wilsonville. This corridor has three potential
addition of additional trackage options (i.e. a 2nd track). options for a High Capacity Transit solution: upgrading the Line 76 to rapid bus,
improvements to increase WES frequency and service (which do require double
tracking), or extension of light rail.
43 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N C-17S is good conceptually, but, under a corridor No change recommended. The alignment extent and/or segmentation for C17S N C
Councilor functionality definition it actually becomes 2 corridors - (Oregon City to Downtown Portland via Hwy 43) would be considered in
West Linn to Sellwood Bridge, and a Sellwood Bridge to developing the project as part of the locally-preferred alternative and its
Downtown corridor. implementing design undertaken as part of the corridor planning process.
44 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023|HCT Strategy N C-14 - has anyone done a preliminary penciling out of the No change recommended. TriMet and Metro staff have explored the feasibility and N C
Councilor cost/benefit of a river tunnel including the potential grade |cost/benefit of the tunnel via the MAX Tunnel Study. While the tunnel would
implications? Of more concern is thenimportance of reduce the number of stops downtown, it would still retain some subway-style
“through” ridership using the Central City concept which stops in the central city. This was consistently the top community prioirity
would imply that trips out of the central city are dominant. It |expressed in reply to surveys and tabling activities by people throughout the
is hard to believe this is a higher priority than many other region. While speed is a key benefit, one of the main problems that the tunnel is a
projects such as 99W, Sherwood/Murray-Scholls/Hillsboro, |solution for is limited capacity for trains on the Steel Bridge that will not allow for
or West Linn/Oregon City-Tualatin. Has a “limited stop the number of trains needed in the future to keep pace with anticipated growth.
express” concept been evaluated? While express trains have some speed benefit, capacity on the Steel Bridge is still a
limiting factor. Additional work to study the tunnel and Steel Bridge capacity is also
included in Chapter 8 Section 8.2.3.4 Steel Bridge Transit Bottleneck Study.
45 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N C23 would seem to be 2 distinct corridors- 155th and No change recommended. The alignment extent and/or segmentation for C23 N C
Councilor Farmington Road. (Bethany to Beaverton via Farmington/SW 185th) would be considered in
developing the project as part of the locally-preferred alternative and its
implementing design undertaken as part of the corridor planning process.
46 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Given recent plans by SMART to supplement C-3 and C-6; it |No change recommended Corridor C3 (Beaverton to Wilsonville in the vicinity of N C
Councilor would seem a corridor along I-5 might be conceptualized. WES) is representative and not a final alignment. The representative alignment
follows WES- the infrastructure existing today- but the HCT solution could be
upgrading the Line 76 to rapid bus, improvements to increase WES frequency and
service (which do require double tracking), or extension of light rail. Those options
would all be sligthly different routes between Beaverton and Wilsonville and could
include an alignmen paralell to I-5.
47 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N C22S seems odd in that C-29 already exists...is this really Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Councilor higher priority than C-2 (Hwy99W) or C26?
48 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy N It is notable that PDX is not shown, although Washington No change recommended. PDX airport was considered along with other major N c
Councilor Square and Clackamas TC are shown. Although we already  |employers and job centers, as well as medical centers and affordable housing
have MAX to PDX, in the future, HCT connection to regional |when developing the High Capacity Transit Strategy vision and prioritized pipeline.
rail, perhaps in Oregon City, might be a useful concept and |Rather than show all of these, the vision map focuses on centers which are the key
better connectivity to Clark County might be important element guiding the network concept in the policy framework. The full transit
network map in the 2023 RTP does show employment areas and air terminals as
well.

8 0of 116



Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023

Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
49 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y | also wonder whether we should consider, in some other No change recommended. Many of these connections would actually be classified N C
Councilor category, some of the other connections such as North as inter-city rail which is a distinct classification under a separate classification in
Plains to Hillsboro, Newberg to Sherwood, Canby to Oregon |the transit network/spectrum and guided by a different policy (Policy 8 on page 3-
City, Woodburn to Wilsonville/Tualatin, and Damascus to 117). That is because they extend beyond Metro’s planning boundary, making it
Clackamas. Because Vancouver has become an important inter-city rail (like Amtrak) which is also guided by the Oregon State Rail Plan due
“regional center” some further discussion might be useful on |to the State’s role in inter-city rail service planning, especially along the entire
the connections between the two HCT systems. Portland to Eugene corridor (and the additional considerations that come into play
with that like balancing passenger and freight rail needs).
While the 2009 High Capacity Transit Plan included a corridor further to the east
connecting to Damascus, this was moved west to align with the Clackamas to
Columbia corridor in the 2018 Regional Transit Strategy. The High Capacity Transit
takes frequent bus to the next level and Damascus is not currently envisioned for
frequent service in the future based on its character. Rather, the Access to Transit
Study will consider whether first/last mile transit solutions to Happy Valley are a
better fit.
Two connections to Vancouver's growing rapid bus system (Mill Plain, 4th Plain,
Hwy 99) are envisioned in the strategy: 1) an extension of the yellow line
downtown (planning underway with Interstate Brige Project) and 2) a connection
across 1-205 (anticipated to connect but shown conceptually to not yet assume a
connection point as C-TRAN continues to plan and build the network).
50 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 8/21/2023 |HCT Strategy Y Add a short section devoted to explaining that HCT is a Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Councilor critical, but not the only, element in the system, and that
transit connectivity, i.e. “reaching many interconnected
destinations” and “last mile connections” are also part of the
overall system and supplemental to the HCT system.
51 Shepley David Community Online 7/22/2023 |HCT Strategy N No change proposed. Expressed support for corridor C17S  |[No change recommended. Corridor C17S is included in the HCT Strategy vision. N C
member Comment Oregon City to Downtown Portland via Hwy 43 within the
Form High Capacity Transit Strategy network vision.
52 Fitzgerald |Marianne Crestwood Letter 8/9/2023|HCT Strategy and N No change proposed. Expressed support keeping the No change proposed. Comment noted. N C
Neighborhood Project Southwest Corridor Light Rail Plan in Tier 1. We shared many
Association comments with Metro while this plan was being developed,
and hope Metro will fund station access projects such as the
sidewalks and bike paths on SW Taylors Ferry Road in the
near future.
53 Holmqvist  |Ally Metro Staff 8/8/23|HCT Strategy Y Amend Appendix A to add the High Capacity Transit Amend as requested. The outreach summarized informed development of the HCT Y C
Appendix A Community Vision Survey Summary and OPAL Community  |Strategy Public Review Draft and the Engagement summary and these documents
Survey Results. These summaries were not yet available at  |are now available to attach for documentation of additional detail.
the time the HCT Strategy Public Review Draft was released.
54 HCT Strategy |Working 7/17/2023 [HCT Strategy Transit Priority Y Amend Appendix F of the HCT Strategy to update the Amend as requested. Y c
Working Group |Group Appendix F Lanes corridor titles and descriptions to add the corresponding
Meeting #7 corridor map ID and identify the locations of planned and
implemented transit prioirity lanes (including Rose Lane
projects). Make additional technical corrections as needed.
55 Lindstrom |Andrew Brooklyn Online 8/18/2023 |High Capacity Transit Y Requests additional clarification on the definition of "high Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Action Corps  |Comment strategy capacity" transit, including a quantitative definition of the
Land Use And |Form number of passengers such transit can move per hour.
Transportation
Committee

90of 116



Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
56 High Capacity Transit Strategy N Requests that ongoing coordination occur between the No change recommended. Ongoing coordination will occur as the High Capacity N C
Gateway to Clark County project identified in the High Transit Strategy is implemented following the adoption of the 2023 RTP update.
Capacity Transit strategy and planned transit strategy
updates in Clark County.
57 Perez Judith Southwest Letter 8/25/2023|Regional Mobility Policy Y Requests that the regional mobility policy include policy Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD C
Washington definitions and specific analyses / performance measure
RTC thresholds for the I-5 and I-205 corridors as they cross the
Columbia River.
58 Newsom Michael Community Online 8/13/2023|RTP - General N Expressed that affordable housing and job opportunities for |[No change recommended. These are important considerations in the 2023 N C
member Comment laborers and the resulting commute pattern needs are Regional Transportation Plan. Chapter 7 describes the performance meausures
Form important considerations. used to asses outcomes of the plan related to shared regional goals. Those
measures include the share of capital spending and network completeness in
equity focus areas (where people with low incomes live) and the number of jobs
accessible by driving and transit in equity focus areas (how investments improve
access to where people with low incomes work). This was also further explored for
our current networks as part of the needs assessment analysis for the plan
(decribed in Chapter 4) and affordable housing (in addition to equity focus areas,
and travel patterns) was also a criteria included in the assessment that developed
the high capacity transit vision.
59 Ford Chris ODOT Region 1 |Letter 8/25/2023|RTP Appendix Y Add the following language to a technical appendix of the Metro staff recommendation on where to include the new language is under Y C
RTP to describe the exemption, screen and enhanced review |development.
process described in the requested Chapter 3 edits to pages
3-92 to 3-94.
60 Faulkner Chris Clean Water  |Email 8/25/2023|RTP Appendix F Y Change the dates of Clean Water Services standards and Amend as requested. C
Service guidance to “latest” or “current” standards and or guidance.
61 Scipioni Ariana Oregon Letter 8/25/2023 |RTP Appendix F N The Metro region lies at the northern end of the Willamette |Metro staff recommendation under development. TBD c
Department of Valley, which is the fastest growing ecoregion in the state.
Fish and Several important priority habitats identified in the Oregon
Wildlife Conservation Strategy face severe habitat loss and

fragmentation from development including oak woodlands,
grasslands (including oak savanna), wetlands, riparian and
aquatic. Oregon Conservation Strategy species in need of
action include western gray squirrel, northern red- legged
frog, northwestern pond turtle, Oregon vesper sparrow,
fringed myotis, acorn woodpecker, and Pacific lamprey.
Lower Columbia River fall chinook, coho and steelhead as
well as upper Willamette River spring chinook are strategy
species in addition to being listed fish species. Thoughtful,
climate informed, collaborative development of
transportation in the region is critically important to the
survival of Oregon’s most imperiled species. The Department
and Metro share a common goal of protecting and
enhancing Oregon's fish and wildlife and their habitats for
enjoyment by present and future generations, and we look
forward to working together to achieve this.

10 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment
#

Last Name

First Name

Affiliation

Method

Date received

RTP Chapter or RTP
Appendix or RTP
Project List or RTP
Overall or HCT
Strategy

RTP ID
if applicable

Project Name
if applicable

Comment
proposes a
change? (Y/N)

Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in
Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeout-and underscore)

DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes
shown in beld-strikeeut and underscore)

Change
Recommend
ed
(Y/N/TBD)

Discussion or
Consent topic

(b/c)

62

Scipioni

Ariana

Oregon
Department of
Fish and
Wildlife

Letter

8/25/2023

RTP Appendix F

The Department appreciates the thorough and extensive list
of federal and state regulations included in the plan. Please
find below a listing of the most applicable statutes,
administrative rules and policies administered by the
Department that would pertain to the TSP. Several of the
below have been mentioned in the plan, however, the
applicable statute or administrative rule number may be
missing.

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS):

*ORS 496.012 Wildlife Policy

*ORS 506.036 Protection and Propagation of Fish

*ORS 496.171 through 496.192 Threatened and Endangered
Wildlife and Fish Species.

*ORS 498.301 through 498.346 Screening and By-pass
devices for Water Diversions or Obstructions

*ORS 506.109 Food Fish Management Policy

*ORS 509-140 Placing Explosives in Water

*ORS 509.580 through 509.910 Fish Passage; Fishways:
Screening Devices

Metro staff recommendation under development.

TBD

63

Scipioni

Ariana

Oregon
Department of
Fish and
Wwildlife

Letter

8/25/2023

RTP Appendix F

OAR Chapter 635, Division 100 provides authority for
adoption of the State sensitive species list and the Wildlife
Diversity Plan and contains the State list of threatened and
endangered wildlife and fish species. OAR Chapter 635,
Division 415 is the Department’s Fish and Wildlife Mitigation
Policy6, which describes six habitat categories and
establishes mitigation goals and standards for each habitat
ranging from Category 1 (irreplaceable, essential, limited) to
Category 6 (habitat that has low potential to become
essential or important. The Policy goal for Category 1 habitat
is no loss of either habitat quantity or quality via avoidance
of impacts through development alternatives. Categories 2-4
are essential or important but not irreplaceable habitats.
Category 5 habitat is not essential or important habitat but
may have a high restoration potential. The application for a
transportation project should identify the appropriate
habitat category for all affected areas of the proposed
project on mapping; provide basis for each habitat category
selection; and provide an appropriate mitigation plan to
compensate for any adverse impacts which will then be
reviewed by the Department. The Department recommends
applicants initiate mitigation planning early within the
permitting effort. For project impacts that cannot be
avoided, the Department will readily work with the applicant
to identify minimization opportunities and potential
mitigation options to offset those impacts that will occur
outside of avoidance and minimization measures.

Metro staff recommendation under development.

TBD

64

Scipioni

Ariana

Oregon
Department of
Fish and
Wildlife

Letter

8/25/2023

RTP Appendix F

The Department recommends all in-water work be planned
for and completed during the Oregon Guidelines for Timing
of In-Water Work and that coordination of this in water
work is one of the first considerations for the project. These
guidelines are to assist the public in minimizing the potential

impacts to fish, wildlife and habitat resources.

Metro staff recommendation under development.

TBD

11 0f 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment
#

Last Name

First Name

Affiliation

Method

Date received

RTP Chapter or RTP
Appendix or RTP
Project List or RTP
Overall or HCT
Strategy

RTP ID
if applicable

Project Name
if applicable

Comment
proposes a
change? (Y/N)

Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in
Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeout-and underscore)

DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes
shown in beld-strikeeut and underscore)

Change
Recommend
ed
(Y/N/TBD)

Discussion or
Consent topic

(b/c)

65

Scipioni

Ariana

Oregon
Department of
Fish and
Wildlife

Letter

8/25/2023

RTP Appendix F

The Department recognizes and appreciates that Metro has
already incorporated the Conservation Opportunity Areas
identified in the Oregon Conservation Strategy, the fish passage
priority list, and other sources of biological data. In addition, the
Department recommends including The Oregon Connectivity
Assessment and Mapping Project (OCAMP) on Priority Wildlife
Connectivity Area’s in Appendix F section 2.3.2, page 28 (pg
32/86). OCAMP was a multi-year, collaborative effort to analyze
and map statewide wildlife habitat connectivity at fine resolutions
for 54 species. Initiated in 2019 and completed in 2022 this multi-
agency collaborative effort used the best science available to
identify Priority Wildlife Connectivity Areas (PWCA) which
represent that portion of the landscape best able to facilitate fish
and wildlife connectivity. In many cases, the PWCA’s include
regionally important riparian areas; managing for connectivity in
these areas will help conserve wildlife and biodiversity and, in
some cases, may be legally required due to the fish passage rules
referenced earlier. The network of PWCA’s serves as a science-
based tool that can be used as a resource, in conjunction with
other sources of information, to support habitat enhancement,
restoration, and protection, transportation mitigation, and
conservation planning efforts, as well as future research and
monitoring. They complement other landscape-scale conservation
maps, such as Oregon’s Conservation Opportunity Areasl,
indicating areas of the state that are disproportionally important
to wildlife connectivity, and can serve as a foundation for future
analyses that address specific conservation challenges, such as
energy development, population growth, and climate change.

Metro staff recommendation under development.

TBD

66

Scipioni

Ariana

Oregon
Department of
Fish and
Wildlife

Letter

8/25/2023

RTP Appendix F

Please consider including an abbreviated summary from the
“Interpreting and using PWCAs” guidance document such as
the following “Roadways and vehicular traffic are a
significant contributor to fragmentation of habitat and
impacts to wildlife connectivity. Most species face at least
some level of mortality risk associated with roadways, and
many species display behavioral avoidance of the activity,
noise, lights, vibrations, and smells associated with roads.
Any location the PWCA network intersects with a roadway is
a potential site for transportation mitigation. However,
some roads pose a greater risk to wildlife connectivity than
others, based on road width/number of lanes, traffic
volumes, traffic speed, driver sightlines, and proximity to
higher-quality habitats. Hexagons attributed with a
Recommended Conservation Action of ‘Transportation
Mitigation’ are areas of the PWCA network that are
particularly susceptible to fragmentation from roadways, as
determined both by the value of the surrounding habitat for
facilitating movement, as well as known areas of high
densities of wildlife-vehicle collisions. Areas designated as
needing Transportation Mitigation would benefit from
installation of wildlife crossing structures or autonomous
animal detection systems that would improve wildlife
passage across the road.”

Metro staff recommendation under development.

TBD

12 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
67 ODOT Region 1 |Online 8/8/2023 |RTP Appendix F Y Appendix F: Table 2, the Metro boundary contains land east |Amend as follows. Add the Columbia River Gorge National Scenic Area Act to the Y C
Comment of the Sandy River. Accordingly, proposes that the Columbia |law/rgulation/permi column and the USDA Forest Service and Columbia Gorge
Form Gorge Commission and/or the Gorge Scenic Area Commission to the responsible agency column. Add Consistency with Gorge
designation apply to some uses and could therefore be listed |[Management Plan in the Documentation or Processes Required column. Add
in the table. National Scenic Area lands and water in the Regulated Resource(s) column.
68 ODOT Region 1 |Online 8/8/2023 |[RTP Appendix F Y Proposes noting that on Table 14 in Appendix F that ODOT  |No change recommended. Wetland banks listed in Table 14 are established N C
Comment has been or is working on a wetland bank on Sauvie Island  |wetland banks. Information on a wetland bank on Sauvie Island related to the IBR
Form for the any needed mitigation related to the Interstate project could be found. If and when the wetland bank on Sauvie Island is
Bridge project. established, and credits are available, it may be added to Table 14.
69 Holmqvist |Ally Metro Staff 8/7/2023 |RTP Appendix L Y Amend Appendix L, pages 35-47, to update the federal TAM |Amend as requested. While Appendix L includes the federal TAM and PTASP Y C
and PTASP performance measures reported to add missing |measures included in the 2022 performance report, some information was not
information for prior years and new data related to 2022 available at the time of reporting and more recent information is also now
performance and 2023 targets where applicable. Make available for year 2022, as well as for 2023 targets.
additional technical corrections as needed.
70 Mohammad|Mohammed Elias [African Youth |Online 8/22/23 |RTP Chapter 1 N Excellent service very good No change recommended. No change proposed. N c
Community Comment
Organization  |Form
(AYCO)
71 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 1 Y Add the San Francisco Bay area to Figure 1.1 Amend as requested. Y C
Councilor
72 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 1 Y Figure 1.7 can be expanded to show TPAC and JPACT No change recommended. JPACT milestones already shown in Figure 1.7 N C
Councilor milestones
73 Tun Thet Naing African Youth |Online 8/22/23 |RTP Chapter 1 N Excellent service. No change recommended. No change proposed. N C
Community Comment
Organization |Form
(AYCO)
74 Ford Chris ODOT Region 1 |Letter 8/4/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Add the following new objective to Goal 4: Thriving Economy|Amend as follows, "Objective 4.5: Maintain or bring facilities up to a state of good Y C
Objective 4.5: Maintain or bring facilities up to a state of repair and avoid deferred maintenance to prevent future more costly and resource
good repair and avoid deferred maintenance to prevent intensive repairs to the system and impediments to moving people and goods."
future more costly and resource intensive repairs to the
system and impediments to moving goods.
75 Ford Chris ODOT Region 1 |Letter 8/4/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Add new objective to Goal 2 as follows, "Objective 2.3: Amend as follows, "Objective 2.3: Maintain or bring facilities for all modes up to a Y C
Maintain or bring facilities for all modes up to a state of state of good repair."
good repair to prevent traffic deaths and serious crashes
related to poor infrastructure conditions."
76 Ford Chris ODOT Region 1 |Letter 8/4/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y ODOT also suggests these additional opportunities to add Amend as requested. Y C
objectives tied to preservation of the system and seismic
resilience in Goal 5, as follows, "Objective 5.5 Adaptation
and Resilience — Increase the resilience of communities and
regional transportation infrastructure to the effects of
climate change and natural hazards including seismic
events, helping to minimize risks for communities.
Objective 5.6: Maintain or bring facilities up to a state of
good repair and avoid deferred maintenance to prevent
future more costly and resource intensive repairs."
77 Min Aye Aye African Youth |Online 8/22/23 |RTP Chapter 2 N Excellent service No change recommended. No change proposed. N C
Community Comment
Organization |Form
(AYCO)

13 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
78 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests that references to 2040 Growth Concept should No change recommended. These types of changes will be addressed in the 2040 N C
Councilor note that the concept as written needs to be “refreshed”, Growth Concept Refresh process described in Chapter 8 of the RTP. These
particularly regarding: a) the emergence of new major comments have been shared with Metro staff leading that project.
centers: b) new development options and standards with
more neighborhood communities; c) much stronger
emphasis on “readiness” for industrial and job lands; d) the
emergence of large scale development on the western UGB
edge; e) the failure of the eastern periphery to develop
rapidly; and f) emergence of southern tier jobs area that
impacts the northern Willamette Valley.
79 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Recommends a “gap” analysis specifically focused on the No change recommended. Comment has beeen forwarded to Metro Urban Policy N C
Councilor major employment lands. This recommendation was made |& Devlopment planners for consideration in Urban Growth Report process that is
in response to "Objective 1.2 System Completion — Complete junderway and for consideration as part of the future 2040 Growth Concept
all gaps in planned regional networks." Refresh that is pending further Metro Council discussion and direction.
80 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests that VMT is less relevant if the fleet were all No change recommended. The VMT targets are adopted in state administrative N C
Councilor electric and that it should be applied only to fossil fuel rules and reflect the equivalent of the light-duty vehicle greenhouse gas emissions
vehicles. that are needed to meet state goals. These reductions are in addition to what state
agencies anticipated would be reduced by electrification of the fleet and transition
of the fleet to cleaner, low carbon fuels. See Appendix J for more information.
81 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Notes that throughway reliability is critical but the RTP Amend as requested. This information will be included within Chapter 4 of RTP and Y C
Councilor needs a clear list of “Current” and “Future” throughways Appendix I.
along with specific locations, connections and congestion
points.
82 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Notes that SAFE system (Goal 2) is an aspirational goal. No change recommended. Metro developed and adopted a vision zero goal in the N C
Councilor Suggest that due to human nature we will never have zero; |2018 RTP with extensive input from the public and policy makers. As described in
SAFE also needs to deal with personal safety when riding the 2018 Metro Regional Transportation Safety Strategy, setting a goal of zero
common transit; “Harassment and intimidation” elimination |deaths and severe injuries, with interim targets for reaching the goal, reflects the
should be goals along with crime and terrorism. perspective that these deaths are not accepted as unpreventable deaths. Setting
ambitious transportation safety goals is increasingly used as a policy tool because
places that set ambitious goals are resulting in better outcomes when those
ambitious targets are supported by rigorous interventions and prioritization. Safety
Policy 8 in RTP Chapter 3 states: "Prioritize investments, education and
enforcement that increase individual and public security while traveling by
reducing intentional crime, such as harassment, targeting, and terrorist acts, and
prioritize efforts that benefit people of color, people with low incomes, people
with disabilities, women and people walking, bicycling, and taking transit." This
policy addresses personal security. Personal security is defined in the RTP glossary
as protection from intentional criminal or antisocial acts while engaged in trip
making through design, regulation, management, technology and operation of the
transportation system.
83 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests adding a section on Regional Equity (Goal 3) -i.e. |No change recommended. This is referenced in the equity and pricing policies in N C
Councilor system costs and performance should appear approximately |RTP Chapter 3.
the same for travelers in all regions.
84 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests that within Goal 4 each major employment area No change recommended. This comment has been forwarded for consideration as N C
Councilor needs “transit access” analysis and specific goals. part of the Access to Transit study identified in RTP Chapter 8.
85 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests adding text to goal 4: “to provide efficient (energy |No change recommended. Current goal language recognizes importance of N C
Councilor and time) flow of people and goods as needed to support a |transportation system to the economy.

complex and robust economy”

14 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
86 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests that Access to Jobs could use some estimate of the |No change recommended. This is described in more detail in RTP Chapter 4 and N C
Councilor time of travel parameters and discussion of relevance (and |Chapter 7.
comparison) of different modes; it should also be expanded
to reference education and training.
87 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 N Asks if there are guidepostsfor what % of income that No change recommended. Comment will be considered as part of development of N C
Councilor transportation shuld not account for more than (similar to  [the Housing and Transportation Expenditure Tool (currently described in RTP
rent - 30%). Chapter 8, Section 8.4.4.3)
88 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests adding items on climate and resilience within Goal |No change recommended. This is addressed within policy language in RTP Chapter N C
Councilor 5 -1) making sure earthquake routes are resilient, 2) 3 and will be also be further considered within phase 2 of the Regional Emergency
avoidance of environmentally sensitive areas, and 3) Transportation Routes (ETR) project described in RTP Chapter 8 (section 8.2.3) and
multimodal options and redundancy in case of emergency. |has been fowarded to staff who will be working on that project.
89 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggests combining Objectives 5.4 and 5.5 and describe Amend as follows: Combine Objectives 5.3 and 5.4. preserve and protect and Y C
Councilor them more simply: “Do Not Build Transportation Facilities in |integrate and rename the Objective "Resource Conservation."
Ecologically, Culturally, or Historically Sensitive Areas if any
alternative exists.” Within Objectives 5.3 and 5.4, add
concepts for “adaptable, flexible and redundant
technologies that guarantee personal privacy”.
90 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Notes confusion with Table 2.1 (Mobility) - what is the base [Amend as follows: Clarify this and related measures to reference base year of 2010 Y C
Councilor amount of mode share to be tripled? Notes that making and eventual out year aspiration. For access to jobs — clarify that it is relative to
transit and vehicle time-equal is not very 2020 base year and that the base year will be updated with each RTP.
likely. The access to options does not identify a “base year”
and we should define radius goals for each mode.
91 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Notes that in Table 2.1 (Safety) - %’s in goals only means Amend as requested. Clarify that base year is 2015. Y C
Councilor something if we also list the baseline.
92 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Suggest specifying the stretches that add to the 4 hour limit |No change recommended. Reporting of performance in Chapter 7 and Appendix | N C
Councilor when talking about throughway reliability. The US 26 tunnel |will identiy locations thatexceed thr 4-hour threshold.
must be included.
93 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 Y Notes that each job center should have a special section No change recommended. This comment has been forwarded to Metro Urban N c
Councilor with goals and gaps identified. Policy & Development staff for consideration in Urban Growth Report process.
94 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 N Asks where are the climate goals for emission reductions No change recommended. The state sets goals in statewide transportation strategy N C
Councilor from heavy vehicles and a goal for electrification by vehicle |for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The region's GHG reduction target is for
sector. passenger vehicles - cars and light duty trucks, and as such is the focus of the RTP.
At this time they are not including heavy vehicles. With regard to electrification
goals, in 2019 Senate Bill 1044 outlined new Zero Emission Vehicle adoption
targets for Oregon: 50,000 registered ZEVs on Oregon roads by 2020; 250,000
registered ZEVs on Oregon roads by 2025; at least 25 percent of registered vehicles
and at least half of the new vehicles sold annually are ZEVs by 2030; and at least 90
percent of new vehicles sold annually are ZEVs by 2035. In September of each odd-
numbered year, the Oregon Department of Energy issues a Biennial Zero Emission
Vehicle Report that provides updates on reaching the targets, along with other ZEV
information, such as charging infrastructure and cost differences.
95 Rosenthal |Gerritt Metro Email 7/3/23|RTP Chapter 2 N Suggests that the only way to make sure we stay on track is |No change recommended. A high level assessment is included in Chapter 6 . The N C
Councilor to “test” each “strategic” project to see if it meets the goals. |high level assessment is recommended to be further developed to support the

This is arduous but probably necessary for all projects that
are regional - local projects can use a simplified screening.

2028 RTP.

15 of 116




Preliminary Draft Summary of Public Comments Received and Metro Staff Recommended Actions

September 13, 2023
Subject to further refinement

Comment |Last Name |First Name Affiliation Method Date received |RTP Chapter or RTP [RTP ID Project Name Comment |Summary of Comment and Proposed Change Identified in |DRAFT Metro Staff Recommended Action in Response to Comment (changes Change Discussion or
# Appendix or RTP if applicable |if applicable proposes a [Comment (changes shown in beld-strikeetit-and underscore)|shown in beld-strikeotit and underscore) Recommend| Consent topic
Project List or RTP change? (Y/N) ed (D/C)
Overall or HCT (Y/N/TBD)
Strategy
96 Yaseen Maung African Youth |Online 8/22/23 |RTP Chapter 2 N Excellent service very good No change recommended. No change proposed. N C
Community Comment
Organization |Form
(AYCO)
97 Alnajjar Mohanad TV Highway Letter 8/25/2023|RTP Chapter 3 N The RTP, particularly with respect to High Capacity Transit  |No change recommended. The High Capacity Transit Strategy includes clear actions N C
Equity projects, needs to have clear strategies that transportation |and strategies around minimizing impacts to businesses as part of implementation
Coalition agencies need to implement to address the impacts on small |of the transit project:
businesses before, during and after project construction. ® P57 summarizes those lessons learned- including planning for seamless service
This includes potentially providing financial assistance to during construction, a traffic control plan and construction management plan that
compensate for loss of revenue. Implementers must comply |minimize impacts to businesses and prioritize communication. P42 also reinforces
with equity policies to ensure neither residents nor how involving businesses from the outset to understand needs is crucial to project
businesses are displaced during, or as a result of, project success. P 45-6 outline the actions recommended in the strategy related to this
development. topic.
* P 17 also notes support needed to maintain business affordability and avoid
displacement, a key part of equitable development strategies summarized on P45.
P44 outlines the actions recommended in the strategy related to this topic.
e While on the one hand the strategy has actions recommended to minimize
impacts to businesses, it’s important to remember too that those are temporary.
P50 documents the business case for HCT and the return on investment and
multiplier effect on business from the investment (also to the relevance of
affordability strategies mentioned above).
Further, the detailed actions for each project would be further developed with
community as part of the work to create the equitable development strategy for
the corridor. As an example for Division Transit this included a business
competitiveness and property development program, enhancing the
Neighborhood Prosperity Initiative work including hiring an outreach coordinator,
and developing a construction plan that maximized access and visibility for
businesses and supported local patronage in contracts.
98 Ariana Gonzalez Getting There |Public hearing 7/27/2023|RTP Chapter 3 N Not change proposed. Expressed support for values and No change proposed. Comments noted. N C
Together testimony policies reflected in the RTP an